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No. 180 of 1975
No. D. 295/Rect.
ARMY—REGULAR FORCE—PROMOTIONS APPROVED
BY HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT
THE under-mentioned officers to be Colonels with effect from
dates stated against their names:

Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M. N. Jiura, SLAMC
—Qctober 15, 1973.

Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) D. D. HewacaMa,
SLAGSC-—October 15, 1573,

Licutenant Co'onel {Temporary Colenel) J. D. QOYSA, MBE.,
SLLI—October 15, 1973.

Lientenant Colonel (Temporay Colonel) T. S. B. Sanry, SLSR
~—January 01, 1974.

By His Excellency's command,

W. T. JAYASINGHE,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs

Colombo, April 02, 1975.
4-278—Qazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

No. 181 of 1975
No. D. 298/Rect. (ii).

ARMY—REGULAR FORCE—PROMOTIONS AND APPOINT-
MENTS APPROVED BY HIS EXCELLENCY THE
PRESIDENT

Promotions

Lieutenant Colonel G. R. Javasmcas, CAOC—To be
" Temporary Colonel with effect from September 08, 1974.

Major L. G. Sieera, CAOC—To be Temporary - Lieutenant
Colonel with effect from September 08, 1974.

-~
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Appointmenté

Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) G. R. JavasINoHE,
CAOC—To be Commander, Support Group, with effect
from September 08, 1974.

Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) L. G. Sicera, CAOC—
To be Commanding Officer, Ceylon Army 'Ordnance
Corps, with effect from September 08, 1974.

By His Excellency’s command,

W. T. JAYASINGHR,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs.

Colombo, April 02, 1975.
4-~-279—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

No. 182 of 1975
No. D. 17/Rect.
ARMY—REGULAR FORCE—RELINQUISHMENT OF
APPOINTMENT AND APPOINTMENT APPROVLED BY
HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT
Relinguishment of Appointment

THE under-mentioned officeir relinquished the appointment of
Recruiting Officer under Section 18 (1) of the Army Act (Cep.
857), with effect from March 01, 1975:

Lientenant D. M. G. SARATHCHANDRA, CASC.

Apéointment

The under-mentioned officer to ‘be a Recruiting Officer under
Section 13 (1) of the .hmy Act (Cap 357), with effect from
March 01, 1975:

Lieutenant M. R

-

. U. BanpARATILLAKRE, CASC.
By His Excellency's command,

W. T. JavasINGHE,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs.

Colombo, April 01, 1975.
4-258—Gazetto No. 159 of 75.04.11

to the senders oconcerned.

Department of Government Printing,
Colombo, December 15, 1972.

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING FORWARDING OF NOTICES FOR
PUBLICATION IN THE WEEKLY GAZETTE

ATTENTION is drawn to the Important Notxce, appearing at the end of each part of this
Gazette regarding dates of publication of the future weekly Gazettes and the latest times by
+ which Notices will be accepted by the Government Printer for publication therein. All Notices
for publication in the Gasette received out of times specified in the said notice wﬂl be returned

L. W. P. Pgnis,
Government Printer.
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No. 188 of 1975

) No. D. 1/Rect/69.
ARMY-—REGULAR FORCE- COMMISSIONS APPROVED
BY HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT

HIS Excellency the President hus been pleased to approve the
commissioning of the under-mentioned Officer Cedets as ‘Second
Lieutenanta in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with
effect from April 19, 1975, in the order of seniority showmn, and
their postings to the Corps/Regiments stated against their names
with effect from the same date :

/
Officer Cadet TLaRSHAMAN NaDARAJASINGHAM—Sri Lanks

Engineers.

Officer Cadet GEBRIEL MomHAN Rogewoop—Sri Lanks Light
Infantry. :
Officer Cadet Vasantaa Nruat Raxsr Rarasexgra—Sri Lanka
Signal Corps.
Officer Cadet Parmypea INDRAITIE ABEYWARDENA—Sri Lenks
Armoured Corps. )
- Officer Cadet Wasawrma AugYBATNE Pamunuwa—2ri Lanka
Armoured Corps. _
Officer Cadet UNGAMANDADIGE BRENARD I.AWRENCE FRRNANDO
—8ri Lianka Light Infantry. :
 Officer Cadet LIYANA ARATOHIGE RUPASIBI WLERATNA—Sri
Lunka Artillery.
Officer Cadet Rasaragsa KONARAMUDIYANSELAGE JAYAMPATHY
BANDARA WLIERATNR—Gemunu ‘Watch.

Officer Cadet ANDIGE OsWIN MANANDA FerNANDO—Sri Lanka
Army Service Corps.

Oficer Cadet KAntE ParAERAMA WODENavARR—Sri Lanks

Army Service Corps. _

Officer Cadet Bararowapuor Pairm SmiMan MENDIs—Gemunu
Watch, ,

Officer Cadet RoHARN BaNDARA Kirmrra—Sri Lanka Army
Ordnance Corps.

Officer Cadet NissaNra WuUESINGHEER—Sri Lanka Artillery.

Officer Cadet SarbpHA Tissa ABRYRATNE—Sri - Lanka Arxmy
Ordnance Corps.

Officer Cadet BaLAPUWADUGE BLASIUS SUSAHTI'A MenDIS—Sri
Lanka Sinha Regiment. ]

Officer Cadet GaLBopA ARACHOHIGE Rawir Sismaa KuMapa—
Sri Lapks Sinha Regiment.

Officer Cadet ATHULA KumARA SAMARASERERA—STi Lianks Army
General Service Corps.

Onficer Cadet MapapPaTHAGE Pivasint Amivawansa—Sri Lanka
Engineers. )

Officer Cadet ‘TIETRITADURA T188A RaNITY DE Sinva—~-Sri Lanka
Light Infantry.

By His Excellency’s command,

W. T. JAYASINGHA,
. Secretary, .
Minisiry of Defence and Foreign Affairs
Colombo, April- 02, 1975.
4-260—Gazotte No. 169 of 75.04.11

No. 184 of 1975

. No. D. 806/Rect.
LANKA AIR FORCE—APPOINTMENT APPROVED
BY HI§ EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT

GROUP Captain W. D. H. S. W. GooNBTILLERE (01035)—GD/P
is appointed Chief of Staff, 8ri Lanka Air Force, with offect
from 1st January, 1975. ’

By His Excellency’s commn.ﬁd,

W. T. JAYASINGHE,
. Secretary, .
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs.
Colombo, April 02, 1975.

4-277—Gazette No. 159 of 76.04.11

A
No. 185 of 1975 )
] ’ No. D. 252/Rect/5.
SRI LLANEKA ATR FORCE—PROMOTIONS APPROVED BY
HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT OF SRI LANKA

f& 8b_e_ Substantive Group Captain with effect from lst January,

Temporary :Group Captain MA Amcncﬁms Dox
RavasmeEs (01011)—Tech/Sigs.

Temporary Group Captain ANToN HUXLEY PUVIMARABINGHE
(01025)—Equipment. .

Temporary Group Captain WEeLLARATCHCHIOE DoX HARoLD
SoMaTEIPALA WLBRSINGHE GOONETILLERR (01035)—GD/P.
By His Excellency's command,

‘W. T. JAYASINGHE,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs.
Colombo, April 02, 1975.
4-276 /1—Gazette No. 1569 of 76.04.11

No. 186 of 1976 )
. No. D. 252/Rect/5.
SRI. LANKA ATR FORCE—PROMOTION APPROVED BY

- HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT OF SRI LANKA

To-be Substantive Group Captain with effect from 1st March,
1973— '

Temporary Group Gaptain Dox BANDULA SANATH WEERATSE -
(01040)—Admin. : ) .
By His Excellency's command,

W. T. JAYASINGHR,
Secretary, .
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affairs.

Colombo, April 02, 1975.
4-276/2—(azette No. 169 of 75.04.11

No. 187 of 1976
No. D. 252/Rect/5.

‘SRI LANKA ATR FOﬁGE—-PROMOTION APPROVED BY

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT OF SRI LANKA
To be Substantive Group Coplain- with effest from lst-January,
1975— ‘

Temporary Group Captein Diok CUTHBERT Peegra (01037)—

GD/P. )
By His Excellency’s command,
W. T. JAYASINGHE,
Secretary, . .
Ministry of Defence and Foreign Affaira.
Colombo, April 03, 1975.
4-276/3—Gazette No. 169 of 75.04.11

Government Notifications

COCONUl' PROCESSING BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silvs, do hereby appoint with effect from
7th April, 1975, the undermentioned as members of the Coconut
Processing Board by virtue of the powers vested in me under
section 8 (1) (Part 1) of the Coconut Development Act, No. 46
of 1971:— :

(1) Mr. A. K. Nesaratnam .
(2) Mr. L. N. de L. Bandaranaike
(8) Dr. J. Sivapragasam

(4) Mudl. G. E. de Z. Siriwardena
(6) Mr. Sepala Gunasekera. '

CoLviN R. DE Smva, -
Minister of Plantation Industries.

Ministry of Plantation Industries,
No. 6, Sir Baron Jayatilake Mawatha,
Coloinbo 1.

4-270—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11
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COCONUT CULTIVATION BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint, with effect from
30th March, 1975, the undermentioned as members of the Coconut
Cultivation Board by virtue of the powers vested in me under
section 3 (1) (Part I) of the Coconut Development Act, No. 46
of 1971 :—

Mr. W. Gunaseksars

Mr. L. E. A. Fonseka

Dr. U. Pethiyagoda

Mr. G. L. D. P. Sensratna

Mr. Ajith Aserappa

Mr. B. P. Piyasena

Mr. W. B. Medagama.

SO ot 02 10 1

CoLviy R. DE SInva,
Minister of Plantation Industries.

Ministry of Plantation Industries,
6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1.

COCONUT CULTIVATION BOARD
I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint Mr. W.
Gunasekara, as Chairman of the Coconmt Cultivation Board,
with effect from 80th March, 1975, by virtue of the powers
vested in me under section 8(2) (Part I) of the Coconut
Development Act, No. 46 of 1971.

CoLviN R. DE SILva,
Minister of Plantation Industries.

Ministry of Plantation Industriés,
No. 6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawaths,
Colombo 1.

4-141[1—Gazette_ No. 169 of 75.04.11

COCONUT MARKETING BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint with effect from
30th March, 1975, the undermentioned as members of. the Coconut
Marketing Board by virtue of the powers vested in me under
section 3 (1) (Part I) of the Coconut Development Act, No. 46
of 1971 :— .

Dr. S. Tilakaratna

Mr. P. Wattegama

Mr. A. G. Waas

Mrs. Kamini Vitharana

Mr. W. N. M. Kumararathnam

Mr. Ivan Samarawickrama

Mr. R. B. Rajaguru.

PP e go 10

CoLvin R. DB SILVa,
Minister of Plantation Industries

Hinist;ry of Plantation Industries,
6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1.

COCONUT MARKETING BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint Dr. S.
Tilakaratna, as Chairman of the Coconut Marketing Board,
with effect from 30th March, 1975, by virtue of the powers
vested in me under section 3 (2) (Part IJ of the Coconut
Development Act, No. 46 of 1971,

CoLvix R. DB Smva,
Minister of Plantation Industries.
Ministry of Plantation Industries,
6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha, -
Colombo 1. .

4-141/2—Gazétte No. 159 of 75.04.11

COCONUT BESEARCH BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint with effect from
80sh March, 1975, the undermentioned as members of the Coconut
Research Board by virtue of the powers vested in me under
gection 3 (1) (Part I) of the Coconut Development Act, No. 46
of 1971 :—

1. Dr. J. Sivapragasam

2. Dr. J. L. W. Peiris

3. Dr. C. Panabooke

4. Dr. O. S. Peiris

5. Mr. A. Edmund- Perera

6. Mr. P. W. R. de Silva.

CoLviN R. DE BILVA,

Minister of Plantation Industries.

Ministry of Plantation Industries. .
6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1.

COCONUT RESEARCH BOARD

I, Colvin Reginald de Silva, do hereby appoint Dr. J.
Sivapragasam, as Chairman of fhe Coconut Research Board,
with effect from 30th March, 1975, by virtue of the- powers
vested in me under section 3(2) (Part I) of the Coconut
Development Acs, No. 46 of 1971.

. Couviy R. DE Smva,
Minister of Plantation Industries.

Ministry of Plantation Inﬂustn"_ies,
6, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1.

4-141/3—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

THE FINANCE ACT,ANo. 38 OF 1971
Notification under Section 28A

BY virtue of the powers vested in me by section 28A of Finance
Act, No. 38 of 1971, as amended by Finance (Amendment) Law
No. 7 of 1974, I, Leslie Simon Goonewardena, Minister of
Transport, do by this notification appoint March 31, 1975, as
the Iast day by which every application for & revenue licence

(other than & dealer's licence or visitor’s temporary licence)
for a motor vehicle shall be made for the year 1975.

LESLIE GOONEWARDENA,
Minister of Transport.

Colombo, 21.03.1975. ‘
4~155—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

" THE EXCHANGE CONTROL, ACT

ORDER made by the Minister of Finance,” by virtue of the
powers vested in him by section 44 of the Exchange Control
Act (Chapter 4%3).

N. M. PEReRA,
Minister of Finance.

Colombo, March 24, 1875.

rder

Exemption from the provisions of section 21 of the Exchange
Control Act (Chapter 423), is hereby granted in respect of any
gold brought into Sri Lanka by any shipping or airline Company
on board any vessel or aircraft arriving in Sri Lanka, which
the Principal Collector of Customs is satisfied is to be taken
out og Sri Lanka without being removed from such vesseél or
aircraft. .

4-237-—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11
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L. D.—B. 60/84.
THE GUSTOMS ORDINANCE
‘Customs Notiﬁc&tion-—Bond‘ 1/75

IN purspance of “the powers vested in me by seotion 69 of
the Customs Ordinance (Chapter 285), I, Gayananda Cumarana-
tunge, Principal Collector of Customs, do, with the approval
of the Minister of Finance, granted by virtue of the powers
vested in him by that section, by this notice published in
accordance with his direction, approve and appoint the store

©

(mea‘sw;it_:g‘ 158°.6" x 52.6” x 176") at No. 76/1, George
_R. de Silva Mawatha, Colombo I8, ag a warehouse in which
leaf tebecco imported by Messra. Ceylon Tobacce Company Ltd..

- . may be warehoused, without payment of duty on the first

entry thereof.

G. CUMARANATUNGA,
: . Principal Collector of Customs.
Sri Lanka Customs, : o '
Colombo, 18th March, 1975.

4-180—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

" THE WAGES BGARDS ORBINANCE
Notification

IT is hereby. cotifed ander regulation 80 of the Wuges Boards
Regulation, 1971, that under section 9 of the Wages Boards
Ordinance (Chapter 186), the Minister of Labour has becn
pleased to appoint the following persons to be members-of the
Wages Board for the Brick and Tile Manufaciuring ‘Irade for
a period of thres years commencing on August 10, 1974.

4

A. 8. GogErLY MORAGODA,
Secretary,
Ministry of Lobour.
Colombo, March 81, 1976.

Nominated Members
1. Dr. Kamal Karunanayake
2. Mr. G. W. Jayasuriya
3. Mr. V. F. Gunoratne.

BEmployers’ Representeiives

. Mr. B. 8. Appadurai
Mr. R. G. Peiris )
Mr. P. A. Karunaratne
Mr. H. N. D. Fernando
Mr. D. W. Pothmitiyage
Mr. S. A, W, Subesinghe -
Mr. K. D. 8. Siriwardena
8. Mr. G. H. De Alwis.

Workers' Representatives

. Mr. W. L. Fernando

. Mr, D. M. John Singha
. Mr, Jayanthe Javaweera
. Mr. Shelton Goonatilake
Mr. R. Jesudasan

Mr. Oswin Fernando
Mr. A. W. Perera

. Mr.. K. D. Mendis.

4-244—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

Noom@PE

.

NOTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 20 (9) OF
FISHERIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 212)

Karainagar Fishing Dispute'

THE report of J. G. L. Swaris, Esq., who was appointed '
by the Minister of Fisheries to inquire and report on
the above fishing dispute is hereby published in terms
of Section 20 (9) of the Fisheries Ordinance (Cap.212)
for public information.

2. Any person who is affected by this fishing dispute
or any matter relating to connected with or arising
from the fisting dispute and who desires to make re-
presentations on any matter dealt with ip this report
may do so in writing to the Minister of Fisheries
before the expiration of 6ne month from the date of
publication of this notification in the gazette.

E. G. GOONEWARDENE,
, Secretary,
Ministry of Fisheries.

Co:cmbo, 1st April, 1975.

KARAINAGAR FISHING DISPUTE

Report
This matter was referred t6 me under Section 20 (1)
of the Fisheries Ordinance by the Hon'ble Minister of
%«‘ilslheries. The subject matter of the dispute is as
ollows :—

(1) The group of fishermen residing around Karai-
nagar while claiming exclusive fishing rights
object to the fishing operations carried on by
the other group of migrant fishermen from
mechanized fishing craft on ‘the ground, that
such fishing operations have adverse effects on
their fishing operations on which they are’
dependent for their livelihood.

(2) The other group of migrant fishermen from
Mathagal claim a right to fish in the . afore-
said portion of Ceylon waters off Karainagar
on the ground they have establidhed a cus-
tomary right, .

The Inquiry was commenced by me in Jaffna on 19th
March, 1974. Mr. Kulasingham. with Mr. Kodeswaran
appeared for the Karainagar fishermen, I shall refer to
them as the Complainants. Mr. Sunderalingam with Mr.
A. Antony apperaed for the Mathagal fishermen. I shall
refer to them as the Respondents.

The following issues were raised in this case : —

(1) Whether the Mathagal fishermen came to fish in
}13% area for the first time only in February,

(2) Whether they had been fishing in this area prior
to February, 1973, both with and without
outboard motors. ;

(3) Whether the noise of outboard motors disturbs
the muial fishes causing loss to the
Complainants. .

The Complainant called Mr. Shanmugasunderam. He
speaks to an official complaint made by the Karainagar .
fishermen that fishermen from Mathagal had come to
the mural fishing ground and disturbed the fish by
using mechanized boats. He states that the Complai-
nants did not tell him that they had the exclusive right
to fish in that area. . ;

In view of Issue Mo. (1), it is strange that the
Complainants did not state that they had the exclusive
right to fish. The issues as framed show .that the most
important complaint of the Complainants was that
prior to 1973 the Complainants had from time imme-
morial fished in these waters to the exclusion of all
other fishermen. Therefore, the first thing in their minds
in making their complaint would have been to state
this fact. It is strange that no such complaint was made.
The next witness called was Palanivelu, Member V. C.
and R. D. S. He states that only the Complainants
fished in_ the disputed area. No other fishermen fished
in this area. It was only in 1973 that people from
Mcthagal came to fish in this area. On 4.2.1973, some
fishermen came in mechanized kattumarams, about 40
to 50 of these boats. These boats caused damage to the
Complainants’ nets. (This fact was not mentioned by
Mr. Kulasingham who conducted his case very ably
nor is it mentioned in the written statement forwarded
to me). )

An inquiry was held inte the complaint of the Com-
plainants and the A.'S. P. made order that the Respon-
dents should, not go into the area with mechanized
boats. The G.>A. also held an inquiry and ordered that
the Respondents should not go into the area with
nechanized boats. This would ‘clearly show that the
.only complaint of the Complainants was the use by the
Respondents of mechanized boats. This and other
matters which I shall refer to later will affect Issue (1)
raised in this dispute. This witness is not a member of
the fishing society. This would mean that he had not
even one net. He admits that the Respondents have
these same type of nets both old and new for Mathagal
fishing. Obviously this fishing is done only in the Karai-
nagar coast and there was no necessity therefore for
the Respondents to possess this type of net both old and
néw unless they were prior to this date engaged in
fishing on this disputed ground. .
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Mr. S. Arunachalam, A.G.A., Chankarny was next
called as a witness. He was in fact a witness summoned
by the Roespndents but I had called him early as he
had to attend to other official duties. According to his
evidence he is the President of the Pandatherappu
Fisheries Co-operative Society. Mathagal comes under
this area. On 8.3.1973, one Sellakandu of Mathagal
and . A. Francis, Fisheries Inspector made a
complaint that Sellakandu and his party were arrested
by the Police at Kovilam and were prevented from
carrying out normal fishing operations. He telephoned
the Kayts Police and asked them not to obstruct until
the matter was referred to the G.A. He followed it up
with a letter addressed to the O.I.C., Kayts with copies
to the G.A. and D.F.E.O.,, Jaffna. This letter states
that they were traditional fishermen. I specifically
asked him the question why he stated that these fisher-
men were traditional mural fishermen. He answered
that this was because he had heard this from Sellakandu
and the Fisheries Inspector. He had no personal
knowledge about this but he could say that most of
the mural fish coming to Jaffna came from Mathagal.
He made inquiries from the Grama Sewaka and found
that they were traditional mural fisherman, He was
aware that Mathagal fishermen go to other parts includ-
ing Karainagar, The importants acpect of his evidence
is that he could say that mural fish coming to Jaffna is
from Mathagal. If such large quantities of fish go_to
Jaffna from Mathagal where admittedly no intensive
fishing operations are conducted, then obviously this

fish should be fish which the Mathagal fishermen have.

fished from the disputed area.1

His evidence may be equivocal. It is possible that
the fish which he states was sold by the Respondents
at Jaffna was the fish purchased from the fishing ground
at Karainagar ‘and it is equally possible that the fish
sold in Jaffna was the fish caught by the Respondents
in this disputed area. It has to be strongly noted how-
ever that this position was not put to the A.G.A. on
that date but on the next day witness Thevarajah
cleverly gave evidence of the sale of this fish by the
Complainants to the Respondents. This sale would
have been clearly in the minds of the Complainants
since Thevarajah was specific on this matter and even
went to the extent to say that the cause of the dispute
was that the Complainants stopped selling fish to the
Respondents. This was the reason why, according to
him, the Respondents acted in this manner on the day
‘in question. He also states that the Respondents catch
mural fish in Mathagal also. This is not quite support-
ed by-the evidence in this case except the evidence of
a witness who states it is done on a minor scale. The
evidence of the A.G.A. being equivocal, the Respondents
must seek corroboration by other evidence. His
evidence is well corroborated by the evidence called
by the Respondents which I shall refer to later. I
therefore accept his evidence without hesitation.

Thevarajah, President of the Karainagar Fishing.

. Society admitted that he had no nets for the last two
years. He did not have any kattumarams. Kandiyah,
a witness for the Complainants admitted that Thevara-
jah does not do mural fishing, *

The Complainants called Veerakutti Eliyathamby, 80
years and one Kandiyah who merely repeated the
Complainants’ story but did not appear to me to be
truthful witnesses. The Grama Sevaka of. Karainagar
‘North was called .as a witness. He appeared to be
witness who would go to any extent to give exagerated
false evidence. He stated that 700 fishermen in
this village go out fishing. This evidence is clearly
contradicted by the Complainant’s own witness Thambi-
rajah Swamy who categorically stated that only 200
to 300 people do actual fishing and the balanc¢e popula-
tion does other work. He was emphatic that the
Respondents came to fish for the first time in 1973. He
was obviously trying to fall in line with Issue No. (1).
Although he had been summoned to give evidence on
this very point, .he did not choose to bring his diary.
He preferred to give oral evidence of the complaint
made to him because then he would be in a position
to make any statement to suit his ends. He categorically
stated that the complaint made to him made mention of

the fact that the Respondents had not fished in this area-

prior to 1973 and that it was only in 1973 that they
came there to fish for the first time. It would be appre-
ciated that this evidence if true would have been strong
corroborative evidence of Isswe No. (1). His demeanour
however, when he gave his evidence, raised a suspicion
in my mind and I ordered him to produce the diary on
the next date. When the diary was produced before
me on the next date, as suspected by me, there was no
such statgment in the diary. This witness definitely
attempted to get off with false oral evidence of -a
complaint made to him hoping that I will accept his

Al

oral evidence. I hold that this witness has given false
evidence before me and without any hesitation his
evidence on this material point is rejected.

A complaint had been made on 6.2.73. produced b
the Complainants. This complaint too does I1’:xot say tha}i’:
the Respondents came there for the first time in 1973.
This complaint has no bearing on Issue No. ().

Thambirajah Swamyz a Priest also repeated the
version of the Complainants. I think he had been
procurred merely to support the position of the
Complainants. I do not think I can accept his evidence.

V. Marimuttu, R.D.O., Kayts, also gave evidence in
this case. He is a native of Karainagar. The main
occupation of the Karaingar fishermen is fishing. As
far as his knowledge goes, the fishermen from Mathagal
have never fished in this disputed area. prior to 1973.
Mahtagal fishermen came to fish in this disputed area
for the first time in 1973. He is a member of the
Board of Directors of the Primary Co-operative Fishing
Society at Karainagar. I think this' witness is an
interested witness and he is trying to safeguard the
rights of the Karainagar fishermen in fishing exclusively
in this area so that this fishing society can benefit
financially to a great extent. His evidence as against
evidence of the other witness in this case which I shall
refer to later, has to be rejected. He however admits
that if more people are allowed to exploit this area of
sea, the catches of fish would.be very much more and
it would be in the inferests of the country and in
keeping with the policy of Government to have bigger
catches which would be beneficial to our country.

Mr. L. B. Philip, Fisheries Inspector (Co-op: Deve-
lopment) Kayts, was called as a witness. He does not
know this fishing area and cannot give evidence to
support Issue No. (1). His evidence however shows
that a complaint was made that the action of the ‘out-
board motor had damaged the nets of the Karainagar
fishermen. This evidence however does not cover any
of the issues raised in this case. His evidence is signi-
ficant in that he had stated that he got the Minutes
Book of the society and the complaint made by the
President had been .recorded in that book. The
complaint merely refers to the nets being damaged.
The President did not state in that complaint that for
the first time Mathagal fishermen attempted to fish
in this area in 1973 nor did it state that they have an
exclusive right to fish in this area. This evidence of
the F. I. (C. D.) clearly gives the lie to the facts scught
to be proved by Issue No. (1). As I stated before,
Issue No. (1) being the main issue in this case, the
President in this complaint could not have possibly
omitted to have mentioned this most important fact
and had this recorded in the Minutes Book.

Sathasivam gave evidence. His was also a mere
repetition on Issue No. (1). He also contradicts the
Grama Sewaka’s evidence and states that about 300
people were engaged in mural fishing. It is to be noted
that he was in the well of the Court when he gave
evidence as he was seated behind the earlier witness
when he was giving evidence. The Grama Sewaka
of Karainagar produced complaints C. 2 of 7.2.73, C. 3
of 26.2.73, C. 4 of 3.3.73, C. 5 of 13.3.73, C. 6 of 15.3.73.
It is very significant that in none of these complaints
was it mentioned that the Mathagal fishermen came to
these waters for the first time in 1973..Issue No. 1 is
the most important and crucial issue in this case. The
omission to mention this fact clearly shows that Issue
No. (1) had been belatedly formulated for purposes
in this inquiry.

The Respondents called the Grama Sewaka of
Mathagal. The Mathagal Fisheries' Society comprised
of 400 members using 100 kattumarams. In 1962, he
was Grama Sewaka of Mathagal for one year. In 1963,
he went as Grama Sewaka to Vaddukoddai 6 miles
away. In 1966, he went as Grama Sewaka to Pandathe-~
rappu two miles away. In 1969 to Aralai, 7 miles away.
In 1972, he came back to Mathagal. He does not have
a knowledge of the exact fishing ground. He however
has seen the boats leaving the Mathagal coast during
the relevant periods and coming back layden with
mural fish. Admittedly, the only mural fishing ground
of any extent is the ground in disputes. His evidence
that he had seen the boats going towards Kovilam
point and coming back layden with fish ieads one to
the irresistible conclusion that these boats set out to
the Kovilam point and return from the disputed fish-
ing ground. He knows that the fish is brought from
the Kovilam fishing ground area. He has seen this in
1962. I am quite satisfied that he is speaking the truth.
Counsel for Complainants wants me to reject his
evidence on the ground that he had stated that he had
bought fish at 10 p.m. and. there is contradiction in
ﬁ;sd es\;lit‘ijence in the light of what witness Selladurai
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At this stage, I could refer to the submissions made
by Counsel about the contradictory evidence of the
time' of departure and the time of arrival of the boats.
I have considered these discrepancies and I do not think
that they materially affect the case of the Respondents.
Selladurai was called by the Respondents. He was a
.fisherman. He did fishing in kattumarams for mural
and also turtle fiching. He fished in Mathagal ‘and
Silavathurai. During January, February and March, he
did ‘mural fishing at Kovilam peint (disputed area).
During the rest of the seasons, he fished at Matha%al
and Silavathurai. He was a fisherman for 15 years. He
had gone to the disputed point to fish for mural from
his 15th year. For 8 or 9 years he had used outboard
motors fitted in kattumarams with sails. The catch is
more in mechanized craft. They do not disturb the
fish -or interfere with other peoples’ fishing. Nets have
not been damaged due to the working of the propellers
of the motors. Where, a mechanized kattumaram
approaches a net the person operating the ‘outboard
motor lifts the outboard motor until the kattumaram
ﬁasses the net. When they approach shoals of fish they

nock off the engine and row up to that point. The
engines are knocked off 50 to 100 yards away.

- ‘He glves the description of the mode of fishing. He
gspeaks to sounds made by fishermen when they
approach the shoals of fish. It appears that according
to the customs of these fishermen sounds are made
hoping to attract the fish into the nets. It must be
borne in mind that dertain primitive customs are
nded down to fishermen and these customs are
still followed. The evidence of Dr. P. Canagaratnam,
Research Officer, clearly shows that sounds do not he!p
in fishing but as a custom certain people make sounds.
‘On first principles, a sound made above the water
‘cannot possibly be conveyed to the fish inside the
" water. Much was made of the necessity.for these sounds
in order to explain away the sound caused by the action
of the mechanized boats. I shall deal with this later,
when analysing the evidence of Dr. Canagaratnam.

When shoals of fish appear the kattumaram ‘is rowed
to the place where the fishes are. By that time the
outboard motors have been knocked off. The only
adverse effect that the outboard motor can have is on
the return when there is a possibility that there may
be still nets in the sea. But according to the evidence,

.the boats fitted with outboard motors usually delay
taking off until all the nets are collected.

His evidence was attacked -on the point that he is
not a fisherman but only a fish mudalaly. His evidence
differs as to time from the evidence of the others but
as I have already stated, these minor discrepancies
would not materially ‘affect his evidence. Fr. Joseph

. had not seen him doing mural fishing. -Fr. Joseph’s
knowledge is from 1969 to 1973. It is quite possible that
¥r. Joseph had not seen this witness fishing. This would
not necessarily make this w/i-tness’ evidence false. He
appeared to me to be a geniiine fishermen who in his
Jater years of life engaged more in the fish trade than
in intensive fishing.

Rev. Fr. Lewis Joseph, Parish Priest, Mathagal. gave

. evidence. 'He was Parish Priest from June, 1968. He
had actually gone with the fishermen to see the fishing
done to the Kovilam point fishing ground. This was in
the latter part of Feruary, 1969. There were a few

people who do mural fishing to the East of the Mathagal
grotto about 1/2 to 1 mile away. That was_only by
about 5 or 6 kattumarams by 10 people. I might here
state that the Fast would mean in the opposite direction
to the Kovilam coast. The majority of the fishermen
went to Karainagar side—about 26-36 kattumarams.

In February, 1969, he went with the fishermen to

Kovilam point. They went up to a point about 100

yards from the. fishing ground and he goes on to_give
eviderice- as to how the fishing is done. His evidence
is attacked .in the written submissions that he was
rejudiced in favour of the Mathagal fishermen because

Ee is a Parish Priest of a2 predominently Catholic com-
munity and belongs to the same caste and is therefore
an interested witness, that he had taken an active part
in this dispute wheh the Police arrests were made, I
must say that it is only natural that he had to take
an active part when his parrishioners had been
arrested. T have seen''this witness before me. I have no
hesitation in holding that this. witness was spéaking
the truth. I cannot agree with Counsel that this witness
will lend himself to give false evidence merely because
he is of the same community and is .the Parish Priest
of the villagé. In Jaffna, there are Catholics of every
ecommunity in every village and I cannot accept the
suggestion that this witness (whom as I stated before
appeared to be truthful) will take the side of a parti-
cular community. His evidence which I accept without
hesitation cledrly shows that prior to 1973, the Mathagal
fishéermen had been fisliing along the Kovilam ecouast.

[

Mr. R. Francis, Fisheries Inspector of Kayts gave
evidence. He assumed duties in Kayts as Fisheries
Inspector on January 6th, 1970. Apart from the
Karainagar fishermen, fishermen from other areas like
Eluyaithivu, Mathagal come to this place for mural
fishing.. From 1970, about 6-7 kattumarams came for
mural fishing from Eluvaithivu. 1 or 2 of them are
mechanized and the rest use sails. In 1973, the mecha-
nized kattumarams coming from Eluvaithivu increased
by 2. From Mathagal about 15 non-mechanized
kattumarams and about 1 or 2 mechanized kattumarams
came for mural fishing in 1970. In 1971 the number
of mechanized kattumarams increased by about 1 or 2
and in 1972 the number of mechanized kattumarams
increased fo 10. In 1973, the number of mechanized
kattumarams increased to 25 or more. From 1970 to
1973, he had seen kattumarams fitted with outboard
motors used for fishing in this disputed area. He is an
Inspector, still attached to the Fisheries Department.

In all inquiries of this nature it is customary for the
Department to summon all Fisheries Insngorsr'and
other officers concerned in the dispute. He is accused
of giving false. evidence on some complaint that had
been made against him by some Karainagar fishermen.
I_cqnnot conceive of the possibility of an official witness
giving such palpably false evidence because some
fishermen out of sveral had sent a petition against him.
Complaints against Government officers are not
uncommon. In this instance the complaint had not been
proved. Counsel complains that at the Conference he
was present and did not give evidence. No doubt he
was present at the Conference, but unless he was
speciafically questioned by the G.A., he could not give
e\_nde‘nce._ The position ceftainly would have been
different if he had been questioned by the G.A and did
not give this-evidence. I certainly accept his evidence.
I might go so far as to state that if the case rested on
the evidence of this witness alone I would have acted
on his evidence. It must also be noted that this witness
was not summoned by the Respondents although his
name appears in the list of witnesses but summoned
by the Department.

Mr. A. Francis, Fisheries Inspector, Mathagal, also
gave evidence He is an official witness not called by
either the complainant or the respondent but merely
summoned by the Department as is usuallv done. He

" had been in charge of the area from 1971. He had seen

the Mathagal fishermen going towards Kovilam and
returning with catches of mural fish. The remarks I
made earlier of the Grama Sevaka, Mathagal apply to
this witness also. .

There is no other fishing ground for mmural in this
area. According to his official knowledge, fishermen
from this area went towards Kovilam from 1971 and
came back with mural fish and they say they got it from
Kovilam. According to the information this has been
going on since 1964.

In an inquiry of this-nature, the strict rules of
evidence are not usually followed. Some of the evidence,
although amounting to hearsay can be actepted by me
in view of the fact that these official witnesses had seen
the boats ‘going towards Kovilam, comingz back from
Kovilam and on inquiries made from the fishermen and
from the people, they learnt that the fishing was done
in this disputed area. )

Anthonymuttu Rasiah, a fisherman from Eluvaithivu
gave evidence. He contradi¢ts the claims of the com-
plainants that only the Karainagar fishermen fished in
this area. His evidence is corraborated by the Fisheries
Inspector in this area, and 1 accept his evidence.
Sellakandu corraborates the evidence of the respon-
dents‘ witnesses. He appears to be a truthful witness.
In spite of ceitain discrepancies referred to by Counsel
as to times and places, I accept his evidence.

- T -inspected the scene on 15.6.74. There appeared to
be a certain confusion as to the fishing ground but it
was later resolved by the parties. One A. M. Ambala-
vanar was present at the scene, He stated he wras

- V. C. Chairman of Karainagar from 1948. He knew all

the particulars of this dispute. At 'the sscene he veally
was heading a gang of people who came to make
representations before-me. It is surprising that this
witness who claims to be a V.C. Chairman from 1948
was never called as a withess for the complainants.
The complainants satisfied themselves by calling certain
fishermen. If they had a witness like A. M. Ambalavanar,
a V.C. chairman who was prepared to come and give
evidence and face cross-examination, surely they could
have called this witness.
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Dr. P. Canagaratnam, Research Officer of the Fisheries
Research Station, was called by me as an expert
witness. He is an Honours Graduate in Zoology from
the University of Ceylon ; M. Sc. and rh.D. in Zoology
and Fisheries Science from the University of British
Columbia, Canada. According to him, sound from an
oar or motor is radial, i.e. it is diffused right round.
The intensity of sound decreases as it t_ravgls ,from
point to point, i.e., if sound of an intensity ‘X and
an area which is 10 feet away from its source, the

1 1 .
intensity will become 0% 10 =100 times ‘X’ and

when this same travels another 10 feet from this point,

1 1 . )

160 100 — 10,000 times ‘X . Sound
is measured in decibles or hertz. (1 cycle per second
js equal to 1 hertz). Here, in the case of ﬂutboar_d
motors, he had no idea of what intensity of sound is
made. However, once the sound is gone the fish come
back to that area again. According to the evidence in
this case, the outboard motors are knocked off 50-100
yards away from the place where the fish appear .and
that is done very long before the actual fishing time.
From the evidence of the expert, which I accept, it is
inconceivable that the noise of outboard motors made
earlier would disturb the fish in the fishing ground.

it will become

I have to consider whether if unlimited fishing is
allowed in this area, whether there is a chance of the
fish being exterminated. The evidence of the Expert
clearly shows that the ficundity of fish is high, particu-
larly pelagic fish. Pelagic fish is fish found from the
surface of the water to a little above the bottom. Mural
fish is pelagic fish. If for instance, one pair breeds and
out of the young only two survive to become adults,
that is quite sufficient to keep a fishery going. Fishing
mortality is only a fraction of natural mortality in the
sea.

On the question of mechanized boats, the main
purpose of using mechanized craft is to .get to and from
the fishing ground quickly and to bring back the fish
as early as possible so that fish will remain in good
condition once it is brought to the shore. Mural belong
to the coastal fish in Ceylon. When he was specifically
asked whether he thinks that mechanized kattumarams
should be encouraged, he stated definit=ly so since that
has been the policy of the Department and the Ministry
to encourage mechanization. The use of mechanized
craft would not cause fish to diminish or become extinct
in this area.

CONCI.:USION

Normally disputes of tHis nature are resolved on the -
balance of probabilities. In this dispute however, I am
satisfied beyond any manner of doubt that the version
pf the respondents is true and that of the complainunts
is false. I answer Issue (1) in the Nagative ; Issue No.
79) in the affirmative and Issue No. (3) in the Negative.

1 might state that the attempt of the complainants to
claim exclusive fishing rights in this prolific fishing
area constitutes a very selfish intention on their part.
It is in evidence that fishermen collect large sums of
money by the sale of mural fish during this period. The
amount collected by each fisherman runs to the tune of
thousands of rupees. The complainants in their attempt
to prevent mechanized craft coming to this area wants
me to go back to the primitive bullock cart days when
jnstead the country should strive to progress. Mecha-
nized boats are being encouraged in this country and
in other parts of the world in order to entrap the
fullest catch of fish possible. In this country at the
moment when the Government is all out on a Food
Production War, it would be foolish on the part of any
Department to restrict such vast catches of fish to any
particular group of people purely for selfish motives.
The country is crying out for food. Would I be justified
in making a finding which wou'd in any way affect
Food Production ? Since it has been proved before me
that the complaint of the Karainagar fishermen is false,
I recommend that all parties be allowed to fish in this
area with or without mechanized boats. In this connec-
tion T must bear in mind the Common Law that all
parties are entitled to fish in the sea. No doubt in certain
circumstances, the Minister of Fisheries may for certain
reasons make. regulations to control fishing but I think
that this type of regulation which the Minister is
empowered to make should not be made in a case of this
nature where a certain section of the cornmunity, purely
on selfish notives, is striving to. keep other fishermen
out of their fishing areas.

J. G. L. SwaARis,
Commissioner, .
Karainagar Fishing Dispute Inquiry.

This Report was read out by me ‘in the presence of
parties in English and interpreted into Tamil by the
translator of the Department of Fisheries, Colombo, on
August 13, 1974

J. G. L. SwaARms,
Commissioner,

4-205—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

L. D.—B. 8/66.
THE CEYLON TOURIST BOARD ACT, No. 10 OF 1966

ORDER made by the Minister of Shipping and Tourism under

section 48 (1) of the Ceylon Tourist Board Act, No. 10 of 1966.
gt oed: 8. 8. 8pd8.y,

Acting Minsier of Shipping and Tourism.

Colombo, 20th day of March, 1975.

¢ Order

The Order made under Section 48 (1) of the Ceylon Tanrist
Board Act, No. 10 of 1966. and published in Government Gazette
No. 14,702 of July 1, 1966, as amended from time to time, is
hereby further amended by the substitution, for the definition of
the expression ** travel agent ', of the following new definiticn:—

‘* travel agent ' means an individual, partnership, company
or a body corporate or unincorporate who or which provides

for fee or reward any or all of the following services or facili-
ties to tourists visiting Sri Lanka or residents of Sri Lanka
travelling abroad: )

(s) The issue of transport tickets or booking of seats on any
means of transport; A

(b) The reservation of accommodation in hotels, rest houses,
guest houses and other places providing lodging ~and
refreshment; .

(c) Provision of rccention at ports of entry, assistance in .the.
securing of travel documents such as passports, vieas,
exchange control permits and the clearing and transport,
of bagaage; : :

(d) The organisation of excursions or tours either on an all-
inclugive basis or on the basis of a commission on .the

- gale of travel tickets, and the provision of services and
facilities connected with such excursions or tours. " .

4-259—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

THE INLAND REVENUE ACT, No. ¢ OF 1963

Notice of declaiation under Section 16CC

IT is hereby notified that the Minister of Finance has, under
the powers vested in him by section 16CC of the Inland Revenue
Act, No. 4 of 1963, as amended by the Inland Revenue (Amend-
ment) Law, No. 17 of 1972, declared the undertaking specified
in Column 1 of the Schedule to thiz notice and carried on by
the company specified in the corresponding entry in Column II

- .%4of that Schedule to be an approved undertaking for the purpoges
© " of that section. ) . - .

C. A. Coorey, -
Secretary,

Colombo, March 27, 1975.° Ministry of Finance.

ScomeprLe
Column II" -
McLerens ]Ii‘oliday Resorts .

]

Column I
Hotel Topsz, Kandy.

4-236—Cazette No. 159 of 75.04.11
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THE INLAND REVENCUE ACT No. 4 OF 1963 Limited, to be an approved undertaking i{or the purposes of
Notice of declaration nnder Section 16CC that section. .
. " . C. A, Coorey,
IT is hereby notlf_ied that the Minister of Finance has, under - Secretary,
the powers vested in him by section 160C of the Inland Revenue Ministry of - Finance.

Act, No. 4 of 1963, as amended by the Inland Revenue (Amend- Colombo, March 27, 1975.
ment) Law, No. 17 of 1972, declared the nndertaking for the
export or sale of gems carried on by Messrs. Lakruwan Gems  4~234—Gazette No. 169 of 75.04.11

No. 543 E 141/D (ix)
DECLARATION OF POSTS AS PENSIONABLE POSTS »

IN pursuance of Section 2 of the Minutes on Pensions and subject to the provisions of the said Minutes, it is hereby notified
that every holder of each of the posts specified in Column I of the Schedule hereto in the Department specified in the corresponding
entry in Column IT of that Schedule is eligible for pension, with effect from the date on which he is appointed to such post.

D. B. 1. P. 8. SIRIWARDHANA,
Secretary,
Ministry of Public Administration,
Local Government and Home Affairs.

Ministry of Public Administration,
Local Government and Homo Affairs,
Colombo 7, March 14, 1975.

Schedule
Column 1 Column 11
Addit,ional Secretary (whilst held by Mr. K. B. Diasanayake with effect from 23.8.1973) Ministry of External and Internal Trade

‘Secretaries (Re;xt Control Boards) (whilst held by Mesars M. B. S. Sunandaratne, ]
Deaprtment of National Housing

P. A. D. Perera, P. M. Wilson, P. P. Kodituwakku with effect from 1.8.1973 and
Mr. M. S. Jayasuriya with effect from 1.10.1973)

Authorized Officer (Whilst held by Mr. Piyadasa Tennakoone with effect from? . ..
15.3.1974) j Department of National Housing

Finanece Officer, Ministry of Agriculture and Lands (whilst held by Mr. S. Mylvaganam) Ministry. of Agriculture and Lands

Baboratory Technologist (whilstheld by Mr, A. M. V. R. Manatunge) .. Department of Zoological Gardens

Deputy Director of Programming (whilst held by Mr. D. T. Rajaratnam) b

Additional Senior Assistant Secretary (whilst held by Mr. C. J. Weerasekera with | ‘
effect from 30.1.72 to 26.2.73) & . Ministry of Housing and Construction

Senior Asst. Secretary (whilst held by Mr. C. J. Weerasekera with effect from 27.2.73)

Asgigtant Sécretary (Internal Audit) (whilst) held by Mr. E. M. D.W. Chandraaek\ma)

- Extension Officers (whilst held by Measrs. W. M. A. Weerasekera, T. Manoharan)
. P.Varakadeniya, M. A. Wijesooriya, T. A. Nandanasinghe and I. N. H. Pereira Department of Minor Export Crops
Farm Manager (whilst held by Mr. P. H. Gunasiri with effect from 1.9.1973) / .

4—183%6% No. 159 of 75.04.11

~

CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES LAW.NO. 5 OF 1972—CONFERMENT OF POWERS
Order ' .

IN pursuance of the powers vested in me by section 2 (2) of the Co-operative Societies Law No. 5 of 1972, I, Tikiri Bandara,
Tlangaratne, Minister of Foreign and Internal Trade, do by this Order, confer on each of the persons appointed to assist the Commis-
sioner of Co-operative Development and specified in column I of the Schedile hereto, such powers of the Registrar under the Co-
operative Societies Law No. 5 of 1972, and under the Rules made thereunder, as are specified in column IT of that Schedule. -

a

e . v . . T. B. ILANGARATNE,
: ‘ Minister of Foreign and Internal Trade.
75.03.28, ’
Colombo.
, SCHEDULE
[ e o o .
Column I ’ ' Column 11
1.- Mr. Heethake Rupawansa De Silva Powers under the Co-operative Societies Law : . -
2.. Mr. Porage Ranjith Perera .. R - -All the powers of the Registrar under Sections 3, 5,-6, 7, 8, 33,
3. Mr. Devagirige Dayaratna Dharmasiri’ T 42,43, 44 (except 44 (6), 45, 46, 47, 50, 52, 58, 54,58 (except 58 (2) (a)
4. Miss Asoka Padmini Munasinghe . and. 58 (5), 59, 68, 72. .7
5. Mr. Vajiranath Haputanthri )
6. Mr. Tilakaratne Hapangama Powers under the Rules :— .
7. Mr. Koku Hannadige Weerasena All the powers of the Registrar under Rules 4, 11, 13,416 (i), 18,
8. Mr. Dolawatta Appuhamillage Don Jayawardens 19, 20, 33, 37, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 48, 49, 53, SRR .

9. Mr. Weerasena Kalu
10. Mr. Dharmasena Dissanayske

4-184—Gazetio No. 159 of 75,04.11 .
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My No. T17/1077.
THE INDUSTRIAL DISPUTHES ACT, CHAPTER 131

THE Award transmitted to the Commissioner of Labour, by
the Arbitrator to whom the Industrial Dispute which had arisen
between the All-Ceylon Liocal Government Workers’ Union, 67,
Anands Rajakaruns Mawatha, Colombo 10 and Negombo
Municipal Council, Negombo, was referred by order dated 3rd
July, 1973, under Section 4 (1) of the Inﬂustnal Disputes Act,
Chapter 131, as amended and published in the Gaszette of the
Republic of Sri Lanke No. 69 of 20th July, 1973, for settlement
by arbitration is hereby published in terms of section 18 (1)
of the said Act.

W. L. P. o Mer,
Commissioner of Labour.

Labour Secretriat,
Labour Department,
Colombo 5,

25th March, 1975.

A—13970

CL/R. IC.
All-Ceylon Local Government Worker's Union, 67. Ananda
Rajskarona Mawsatha, Colombo, 10.

and

Negombo Municipal Council,
Negombo.

The dispute between the All-Ceylon ILocal Government
Workers' Union, 667, Ananda Rajskaruna Mawatha, Colombo 10,
and the Negombo Municipal Council, Negombo, was referred
to me for settlement by arbitration by the Hon. Minister’s
Order dated 24th April, 1973. The statement of the matter in
dispute prepared by the Commissioner of Labour which
accompanied this order was ** whether the demand of the above
Union that its Member, Mr. K. S. A, P. Fernando should have
been placed on the salary scale Rs. 750—13 x 42—Rs. 1,296
with effect from 27.10.63 and on the revised scale of Rs. 2,640
15 x 60—Rs. 3,540 with effect from 10.10.69 by the Negombo
Maunicipal Counecil is justified and to what relief he is entitled.”

At the inquiry held on 29th May, 1973, Mr. Felix Fernando
on behslf of the Union informed Court that Mrs. Swarna Perera
on behalf of the All-Ceylon Liocal Government Workers' Union
had addressed a letter to the Secretary, Ministry of Labour, dated
9.5.73, stating that the matter in dispute as appearing in the
statement of the Commissioner of Labour dated 2.4.73 which
accompanied the Order of the Hon. Minister dated 24.4.73 was
incorrect and wanted the papers returned to the Commissioner
of Liabour for suitable action.

The Minister thereafter revoked the reference and referred the
dispute afresh to me by his order dated 3rd July, 1973, and the
statement of the matter in dispute which accompanies the order
is as follows :—

“ The matter in dispute between the aforesaid parties
are, whether the following demands made by the All-Ceylon
Local Government Workers' Union on behalf of Mr., K. S.
A. P. Fernando of Negombo Municipal Council are justified
and to what relief he is entitled.

1. That Mr. K. S. A. P. Fernando be placed on the salary
scale of Rs. 780—10 x 421,200 p.s.w.e.f. 27.10.1963 or any
other scale commensurate with the type of duties performed by

9. Given the acting Allowance during the periods that he
had covered the duties of the I.. G. S. Fifter Grade I whenever..
that officer was on long medical leave and from 8.8.70, the
date of his death till the post-was filled by the L. G. §. C. on
1.10.71

8. Given the monthly fized Transport Allowance of Rs. 7
from 27.10.68 for having owned, kept end used & push bicycle
for his official duties.

4. Given Holiday Railway Warrants in terms of the Financial
Regulations under which such warrants are issued to other
employees of the council.

At the enquiry it transpired that Mr. Fernando was interdic-
ted from service on 12.4.73 prior to the date of the referemce
to me. A the time Mr. Fernundo was interdictel he was &
semi-skilled Grade II worker. He was charge-sheeted and after
enquiry was found guilty of all the charges framed against him.

The Negombo Municipal Council decided to treat Mr. K. S.
A, P. Fernando as & new entrant temporary causal labourer
as from 1st February, 1974, and io fix him up in some other
department not under the Municipai Engineer. Mr. Iernando
refused to accept the appointment on the nsw terms and con-
gitlions laid down in the letter dated 24th January, 1974, given
elow.

Interdiction of Mr. XK. S. A. P. Fernando

This is to bring to your notice that the sub-committee appoint-
ed by the Council has found you guilty of all the charges against
you. However, the Coancil has decided to recruit you as a new
entrant temporary casual lahourer as from 1st Jebruary, 1974,
snd to appoint you to a Department in the Council which is
not under the Municipal Workers Engineer. Tou should accor-
dingly report for duty on lst February, 1974, to the Municipal
at 8.00 a.m. The Commissioner will assign you and direct you
to the Department you should work in.

Letter of Apointment will be issued to you in due course.

N. Drwzm FrrNAxDO,
Mayor of Negomwbo.

Since the contract of service no longer subsists it would not
be open to me to make an award and impose & new scale.
Neither can I order the reinstatement in service of the workman
because the severance cf the centract has taken place subsequent
to the reference. I would therefore suggest that the reference
made to me be revoked and a fresh reference be made to another
Arbitrator regarding the following matters:—

** (1)whether the termination of the services of Mr. K. S. A. -
P. Pernandc and the decision to recruit him as a new
- entrant temporary casual labourer as from 1.2.74 is
justified «nd to what relief he is entitled.

(2) whether Mr. Fernando is entitled to—

(a) acting allowance during the period he had covered
the dutics of L. G. S. C. Fister Grade [ when-
ever that Officer was on long medical leave and
from 88.70, the date of his death till the post
was filled by the L. G. S. C. on 1.10.71.

(b) s fixed travelling allowance of Iis. 7 from 27.10.73
for having owned, kept and used a push bicycle
for official duties.

(c) Railway warrants in terms of the financial regula-
tions under which such warracts are issued to
other employees of the Coumcil.”

M. MATHIAPARANAM,
Arbitrator.

15.3.75.

4-901—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11

My No. C/I. 688.
THE INDUSTRIAL DISPUTES ACT, CHAPTER 131

THE Award transmitted to me by the President,
Labour Tribunal to whom the Industrial Dispute which
has arisen between The Ceylon Mercantile Union,
221/1, Upper Chatham Street, Colombo and Messrs.
Maliban Biscuit Manufacturies Ltd., No. 11, Van
Rooyen Street, Colombo 13, was referred by order dated
14th June, 1967, made under Section 4 (1) of the
Industrial Disputes Act, Chapter 131 as amended and
published in the Ceylon Government Gazette No, 14,754
of June 23, 1967, for settlement by arbitration is hereby
published in terms of Section 18 (1) of the said Act.

" W. L. P. o MEL,
: Commissioner of Labour.
Department of Labour,
Labour Secretariat,
Colombo 5, 27th March, 1875.

The matter of an Industrial Dispute
between

The Ceylon Mercantile Union, 22 1/1, Upper Chatham
- Street, Colombo 1
and

Messrs. Maliban Biscuit Manufacturies Ltd,, 11; Van
Rooyan Street, Colombo 13.

ID/LT. 8/178.
Award
The above dispute was referred to this Tribunal by
Mr. M. H. Mohamed, the then Minister of Labour,

Employment and Housing, by virtue of the ;
vesteq in him by Section 4 (1) of the Imd%%g-‘ieﬁ
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Disputes Act (Chapter 131) of the Leglslatwe Enact-
ments of Ceylon (56th Edition) as amended by Acts,
Nos. 14 of 1957, 62 of 1957 and 4 of 1962 for settlement

by arbitration.
[ %S

The matters in dispute between the parties are :—

(1) Whether the termination of employment of the

followmg employees is justified and to what
relief each of them is entitled : —

Mr. W. P. Amaradasa
Mr. M. A, Abeydeera
‘Mr C.-B. Anthony

Mr. W. K. Ariyapala
Mr. G. A. arapala
Miss M. H. Anula
. Mr. K. rA D. Ariyadasa
Mr. P, Albert

Miss T, M Ariyawathie
Miss N. B. Kgmona

Miss V. W. Ariyawathie
Miss W. T de Alwis
Miss A. P. Leela Abey-
smghe
Miss L Amerasmghe
Mr. P. M. Daya Bandara
Mr. E. A. Bodhipala
Miss D, Borelassa |
Mr. J. A Buddhadasa
Miss D. A. Balasuriya
Mr. L. E D Balasurlya
Miss Ranmuthu Chitra
Miss G. A. Chandrawa-
Mr. W. Carolis
Mr. K. D. Chalo Singho

Mr. T. W. N. Chandrati-
lleka -
Mr. D. A. M. Colonne
Miss B. A. Chitra
" Miss K. D. Caroline
Miss R. A. Charlotte
) Nona ) .

Miss H. I. P. Caldera

Miss M. K. A. Daya-
wathxe )

Mr. B. P. E. Dharmasiri

Mr. M. Deemon Singho

Mr. S. H. Dayaratna
Miss Beatrice Dias
Miss G. Deldeniya

. Miss P A, Dias

Mr. M. David Singho
Mr. K. V. G.
Miss T. D. Dayawathie

Miss B. L. Devakularat-
chehi
Miss K. P. Dayawathie

Miss G. A. Daya .
_M1ss K. D. Dayawathie
Mr. K. L, E. de Silva

Mr. Anna de Silva
Mr. W. Dayananda
Miss M. E. M. de Silva
Mr. S. A. Hector Dias

- Mr. A. G. Premasiri Dias
Mr. T. P. G. Edwin
Miss T. Emalin

Miss Seeta Edirisinghe
Miss K. D. E. Ekanaydke
Mr. P. Ekmon

Mr. S. B. Ekanayaka
Miss G. B. Fernando
Mr.. C. M. Fonseka

Miss R. E. T. W. Ferdi-
nands

Mr. M. C. Fernando
‘Mr. G. Q. Feltman

Mr. C. W. Fonséka

Miss M. S. Fernando
Mr. G. S. Fernando
-Miss W. W. Fernando

Mzr. S. G. Fernando N

" Miss P. Grace Gunawar-
M%'s’ G. K. Gunawathie

- Mr, N. ‘A, C. Godamanne'

Dharmasiri

Mr. Harry Gilbert
Miss K. A. Getisnona
Mr.. K. A. Gunasekera
Mr. K. H. Gunadasa
Mr. R. D. Gunadasa

Mr. L. A. K. Gunatilleka
Miss K. Gunawathie .

Mr. J. P. Gunendra
Miss H. A. K. Gunawathie
Mr. S. P. Gunaratne

Miss Evelyn S. D. Guna-

sekera
Miss E. N. Hettiaratchi
Miss B. Hettiaratchi
Mr. H. D. Hemapala
Miss S. Horadagoda
Miss W. D. Viglet Hema-
ntha !

Miss H. A. Hemalatha
Miss M. K. Harriott
Miss D. K. Hemalatha

Miss S. Hewahalapage
Miss G. P. Indranie
Miss K. D. Iranganie
Miss L. D. Indra

Miss L. H. Indrawathie
Miss D. D. Elleperuma

Miss Isec Bertha
Miss J. L. Jayalath
Mr. K. N. Jayananda

Miss D. G. Jayawardane
MISS Mary Joseph
Mr. R. G. Jinadasa

Miss S. M. D. Mary Juliet
Mr. K. T. Jmons
Mr. L. S. K. Jinadasa

Miss S. M. E Jayasinghe
Miss H, Sunitha Jinadasa
Miss W. A. Jane Nona
Miss W. A. D.. Rupa
‘Jayalath

Mr. L. R. Jayasena

Mr. K. D. Francis Joseph
Miss S. K. Karunawathie
Mxl". G. P. H. Karunatilla-

e

Mr. S. D. G. Karunaratne

Miss M. V. Karunagoda

Mr. K. A. Karunasinghe

Miss M. D. Keerthiwa-
thie

Miss G. Kusumawathie

Miss K. Kumarasinghe

‘Miss R. D. Karunawathie

Miss D. Karunawathie
Miss A. D. Karunawathie

Miss' A. Kalyanawathie
Mr. N. Kalyanaratne

, Mr. P. Kalugampitiya

Miss S. Kotalawala
Miss R. D. Kamalawathie
Miss A. M. Loku Menike
Mr. M. A Leelaratne
Miss W. P. Leelawathie
Mr. K. W, Liyanage
Miss T. Liliyan

Miss D. B. Lillihona
Mr, P. P. Leeladasa

" Miss D. M. D. Leelawathie

Miss J. D. Lalitha

Mr. S. A Manoratne
Miss W. A. Mary Anna
Miss E. P. W Munaweera
Mr. I. H. Mendis
Mr S K. ﬁartm Smgho
Metthasoo-
r1 a

sts P. Matilda

- Miss M.

Miss A. P Magllm
Miss M. Mebal
Meulawattue
Mr. B. A. ‘Mahindadasa

Miss A. G. Malinie
Miss L. Masinghe

Miss U. Managama

Miss K. Nawaratne ;
Miss N. B. Nandawathie
Miss W. A. Nandawathie
Miss W. H. Nandanie
Miss M. P. Nandawathie

Miss A. Nanadawathie

Miss R. P. D. Nandawa-
thie

Miss V. Nimalawathie

Mr. N. B. Nandadasa

Mr. P. K. Nanapala

Mr. S. P. Nandasiri

Miss K, D. N. Nanayak-
kara

Miss. K. Premalatha

Mr. E. A. Piyasiri

Mr. K. M. G. Perera

Miss L. A. M. Perera

Mr. S. A, Somapala
Perera

Miss H. A. Premalatha
Miss. U. L. Premawathie
Miss' U. L. Lalitha Perera
Miss W. A. D. Perera
Miss P. Nesta Perera

Mr. T. M Nelson Peiris

Miss R. A. Chandrawa-
thie Perera -

Mr. G. B. Podiappuhamy

Miss P. D. Perera

Miss U. L. R. Perera

Mr. S. W Pathirana

Miss A. A. Podihamine

Miss K. N. Sunetra Pe-
rera

Miss K. T. Padmawathie

Mr. G. A. Piyadasa

Miss M. Dayawathie
Perera

Miss K. N. Selin Perera

Miss H. D. Perera

Miss I.-C. C. Perera :
I . V. C. Premalath4
Miss R. J. M. Chandra

Perera

A Wllmot Perera
D. M. Perera -

. D. Perera

. Piyasiri

. Piyasena

. D. Perera

. P, Piyasena
M. Perera N
V Premawathie
Peiris

Miss R. A. Nalanie Perera

Miss P. R. Namala Pad-
minie

Miss S. A. Agnas Perera

Mr. N. M. J. Podiappu-
hamy

_ Mr. P. V. Premaratne

Miss Magret Palihena
Mr. M. V. Padmadasa

‘Mr. S. K. Piyasena

Miss G. Joslin Perera

_ Mr. J. Ruban Perera
* Miss Clare .Perera

Miss K. H. Padmini

. Miss E. R. Perera .

Mr. K. Sirisena Perera

Mr. E. A. A. Perera ,
Mr. Palihakkara

Miss D., P. Ranatunge
. Miss N, A
Miss W. T

Ranatunge
H. Rupawathie

Miss D. P. Ratnayake
Mr, V Rupasinghe
Mr. D, W. Rajapaksa
Miss K. Ranaweera
Mr. D. S. Ranasinghe
Mr. 'P. Ram Banda

Miss L. H. S Ramyawa-
thie

Mr. P. Ramanayake
Miss K. D. L. Ranjanee
Miss R. A. Rupawatlue
Miss Mallika Rubera

Mr. P. M. Sirisena
Miss W. Somawathie
Miss H. Ariyawathie
Soysa
. R. D. Sirisena’
MISS M. T. S. J. Siriwar-
dane
Miss K. Suraweera
Mr. K. A. Subaneris -
Miss L. P, Silva
Miss E. D, Somawathie
Miss H. W. K. Saumya-
latha
Miss R. A. Somawathie
Miss A. Y. Sjriwardena

Miss H. G. Somawathie
Mr. P. V. Seneviratne

Mr. 8. L. Satyapala
Mr. D. A. Somaratna
Mr. K. K. Siripala
Mr. A. G. Sirisena
Mr. D

Miss G. A. Sumanawathie

Miss N. D. Seelawathie

Miss W. P. G. Somawa-
thie

Miss H. D. Sumanawa-

thie L.
Miss N. G. D. Somawa-
thie
Mlss:l S. Chandrawathm
Miss N E. M. de Silva
Miss R. L. A. G. Malini
Silva

Miss K. S ‘Seneviratne

Mr. W. D. Siriwardena

Mr. M. Slmon

Mr. W. Samson

Miss Anna de Silva

Miss G. Soemawathie

Miss K. Karunawathie
Silva

G Somawathie

Tokkekeratne

Mr, S.

Mr. M. H. A. Thisera
Mr. S. P. Tollekeratne
Miss C. J. .Mary Theresa
Mr. G. A. Upasena

Miss J. A. Udulawathxe ~

Miss V. G. Violet

Miss K. G. Wimalawathie

Miss S. Wimalawathie

Mr. W. N. M. Weerasin-
ghe

Mr. D. C. Wlkremasmghe
Miss B. Weerasinghe
Miss Violet Wijesinghe

Miss W. A. Wijendra
Miss G. D. Wimalawathie
Miss P. Wickrematilleka
Mr. M. A. Wickrama-
ratne
Miss D. Withanachchi
Miss D. Prema Wijeratne
Miss D. D. Wimalawathie
Mr. M. William Singho
Miss W. G. D. C. J. Wee-
raratne
Mr. M. Wijesena

. Mr. S.. A. Francis Wilson

Miss T. W. Yasawathie

Mlgs '‘G. D:: Yasawathxe

Miss P. D. M. Perera

Miss Padmini Weerak-
kody
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2) Whether the non-offer of work to the following
@ employees is justified and to what relief each
of them is entitled :—

Miss D. D. Asilin

Mr. P. Ariyasena

Miss D. C. W. Basnayake
Mr. S. A. P. Dissanayake

Miss Wansawathie Dhar-
masena

Miss Mary Elizabeth

Mr. W. Joseph Fernando

Miss K. D. Florence

Miss M. D. L. Gunatilleke

Mr. M. P. W. Gunawar-
dana

Miss G. L. Gunaratne

Miss S. A. Hemawathie

Miss H. Hettiaratchchi

Mr. M. R. P. Janis

Mr. H. D. Jinadasa

Mr. R. K, Jayasena

Miss M. H.. Violet

Miss G. Mallika Jinadasa

Mr. P. M. K. Jinadasa

Miss Kusuma Kariyawa-
*sam

Miss K. O. Lalitha

Mr. D. D. Martin

Mr. M. H. Martin

Miss M. H. Malini

Mr. B. Newton Perera

Mr. A. H. Piyadasa

Miss K. G. Premawathie

Miss H. A. Wimalawathie
Perera

Miss T. Wimala Peiris

Miss H. A. N. A. Perera

Miss R. Irene Perera

(3) Whether the transfer,
quent termination
following employees

relief each of them is entitled :—

Miss W. D. Ratnawathie

Miss Kusuma Rajapakse

Miss Katherine Ranasin-
ghe

Mr. L. S. K. Rabiel Sin-

gho .
Mr. Senarath Silva
Miss G. K. Somawathie
Miss Ratnawathie Soysa

Mr. A. K. Sarath

Miss S. P. Seelawathie
Miss A. G. Sirimawathie
Miss K. G. P. de Silva
Mr. J. W. Sandiman
Mr. W. A, Somapala

Miss K. G. Tillekawathie
Miss H. V. Wineetha

Miss Muriel Williams
Miss E. A. Wimalawathie
Miss Ramyalatha Withana
Mr. I D. Abeyweera

Mr. R. Arumugam

Mr. A. A. Cader

Mr. W. Joseph Fernando
Mr. R. K. Jayasena .
Mr. Cassim Mohamed
Mr. S. Perumal

Mr. Malcolm Perera
Mr. S. Ranasinghe Silva
Mr. L. Tudor :

Mr. A. M. Mansoor

Mr. H. A. Dharmadasa
Mr. A. Ranjith

demotion and the subse-
of employment of the
is justified and to what

“Mr. A. C. Abeywickrama Miss Sumana Munasinghe

Miss Indrani Dalugoda

Miss M. Irangani Dharma-
wathie

Mr. K. G. David Appu-
hamy

Miss H. W, S. M. Caldera

Mr. S. Cecil Fernando

Miss Susima Gunatilleka

Mrs. L. N. Janenona

Mr. L. D.-Jeevananda
Mr. A. Kulatunga
Miss Pathma Kumarasin-

ghe
Mr. Senaka Kithsiri
Miss M. Mayawathie

(4) Whether the tranfer

Miss Malini Nanayak-
kara

Mr. B. Bandula Perera,.

Mr. Sirisena Peiris

Mr. G. Somadasa Perera

Mr. H. A. Razaak

Miss R. A. Seelawathie
Miss P. M. A. Siriyalatha
Miss H. D. Siriyawathie

Mr. N. G. Seetin

Miss K. A. L. Sarawick-
rema

Miss W. Wimalawathie

Miss N. Wanigasinghe

Miss Dayawathie Walpola

and demotion of, and

subsequent non-offer of work to the following
employees is justified and to what relief each
of them is entitled : —

Mr. H. K. Arulandi

Miss Soma Amarasekera
Miss Leelani Jayasinghe
Mr. N. P. Pekin Sena

Mr. Merryl Perera

Miss K. Somawathie
Miss K. Bamunusinghe
Miss L. N. D. Lalitha
Miss P. G. Dhanawathie
Miss Lalith Rupasinghe
Mr. K. M. Donald Perera

Mr. M. V. D. Gunasekera
Mr. C. D. Godage

Mr. H. Ananda Perera
Mr. B. A. Cyril

Mr. B. Sunil Perera

Mr. D. B. R. Jayawar-
dane

Mr. R. M. D. Piyasena

Mr. G. H. Sugathapala

Mr. Patrick Perera

(5) Whether the interdiction »f, and the subsequent
non-offer of work to the following employees
is justified and to what relief each of them is

entitled : —

Miss Florene Collom
Mr. Saranapala Costa
Miss Pearl Clyne

Miss P. Sheela Rodrigo
Mr. L. R. Perera

(6) Whether the interdiction and subsequent terrr_ii‘-

nation of

employment

of the following’

employees is justified and t6 what relief each

of them is entitled : —

Mr. N. B. Boange
Mr. S. A. Benedcit

- Mr. P. Nanayakkafa" -

Miss D.
singhe = ¢ t
Miss Indrani Seharatne
Miss R. J. Nandawathie

A. M. Weera-

(7) The following demands of the aforesaid Union
made on behalf of its members : —

(a) Letters of Appointment be issued to all employees .

specifying : —

(i) rates of pay,
(ii) hours of work,

(iii) leave cntitlements, and
(iv) other terms and conditions,

(b) All monthly paid, weekly, paid, daily paid and
plece rate workers to be made permanent ;

(¢) The condition of employment which prohibits
a female employee from continwng n em-
ployment on her marriage be withdrawn
forthwith ; '

(d) Uniforms should be provided to all employees
who are required to wear uniforms at the
factories ;

(e) Separate and proper Rest Room facilities to male
and female employees should be provided ;

(f) The present practice of intimating refusal of work
to employees through the watcher at the gate
to be discontinued forthwith and instead
a suitable alternative system introduced; and
any interdiction or suspension from work of an
employee should be effected after such employee
has been issued with show cause notice and
after considering the explanation tendered by
him/her, and only on grounds warranting
e:lcclusxon of such employee from the work-
place.

- The parties filed their statements in Juiy, 1967 and
télﬁereafter the answers to the statements were filed by
em. ' .

It would be necessary to rceall the circumstances
which led to this dispute in order to understand and
apptr.ecmte fully the nature of the dispute between the
parties.

The respondent Company, according to the evidence
produced before the Tribunal, was incorporated in 1954
as a Limited Liability Company and 1ts main business
was the manufacture of biscuits at their. factories at
Kotahena and Ratmalana. ‘They also did their own
packing, distribution and sales of their products throuh-
out out the island. It was also claimed by the Company
that at the time of the incidents leading to this dispute
the Company was also exporting their biscuits to the
Middie East, the Persian Gulf and Red Sea Ports. The
Company also had a specialised line in the manufacture
of what was called “*school biscuits” which they did
with the collaboration of C. A. R. E. Organisation.
For the manufacture of their biscuits the Company
appears to have had extensive machinery and equipment
specially imported from abroad at considerable expense.
Round about 1966 the workforce, consisting of both
males and females, amounted to about 750 workers.
These workers had from the year 1959 formed them-
selves into a Trade Union called “Maliban Viskothu
Karmantha Sevaka Sangamaya.” Somewhere in May,
1966 a branch of the National Employees’ Union was
also formed among these workers. This branch Union
had taken up with the management several disputes
relating to dismissals, transfers and demotions of some
of their members. At a conference held on £.10.1966
under the aegis of the Department of Labour some of
these matters were settled and an agreement was signed
between the parties and this agreement was marked
R1. However, further disputes, allegedly arising out of
the implementation of the terms of settlement recorded
in R1, followed and further discussions took place
between the parties, once again under the aegis of
the Department of Labour. As there was no satisfactory
settlement of these matters parties had agreed to a
reference of the dispute for settlement by voluntary
arbitration. The Minister of Labour had by Gazette
Notification dated 2.12.66 referred this dispute under
Section 4 (2) of the Industrial Disputes Act to Mr. W.
D. Thamotheram, Arbitrator, for settlement by arbi-
tration. However before the Abitrator could complete
his inquiry the members of the National Employees’
Union had resigned from the Union and joined the
Ceylon Mercantile Union a branch of which had been
formed about this time at the _Comgax_iy. As a result
the .National Employees’ Union being no longer
concerned with the matters in dispute had withdrawn

from the arbitration. The Arbitrator accordingly .made-

-award in ID 361 dated 19th February, 1967, copy of
which was marked RS, stating that there was no dis~
pute between the said “Union ahd the C‘ompany‘.“‘:) '

formed its branch at the workplace of the respondent

. “'Meanwhile' thie Ceylon Mercantile Union wh}g’ Vipl;ad' :
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on 4,12.66 informed the Company by letter dated
13.12.66 of the formation of the Branch Union. The
Union followed this on 27.1.67 with written represen-
tations to the Company in regard to various disputes
including those that were outstanding from the time of
the earlier settlement. Within the subsequent few
weeks there had passed considerable amount of corres-
pondence between the parties in regard to these disputes
and the Union wrote finally a personal letter to the
Chairman of the Company on 5.3.67 marked Ri3 listing
out all their grievances and stating that pursuant to
their unanimous decisions, the Union would resort to
direct trade union action if a satisfactory settlement,
either by direct discussion with the Chairman or by
negotiations through the Department of Labour, was
not reached by 12th March, 1967.

On 12th March, 1967 at a conference under the aegis
ot the Department of Labour the Union made certain
praoposals to the Company suggesting the reinstatement
of employees whose services had been terminated
leaving-the other matters to be settled by reference fo
arbitration, The Company’s representatives had stated
that they had no mandate to agree to this suggestloxil;
and, therefore, undertook to consult the managemen
and make known its decision on 14.3.67. But further
progress on these negotiations was_ prevented by 'ghﬁ
incidents of the night of 12.3.67 and thereafter, whic
have contributed to the present dispute, and the
management formally informed the Union and, the
Department of Labour that they were unable to even
consider the proposals of the Union. As a sequaltto
‘these incidents the Company forthwith decided to stop
manufacture at their two main factories at Ratmalana
and Kotahena and the workers were kept out. Fron;
90.3.67 onwards the Company starfed issuing .lettersﬂ;)
termination to a large number of their workers on the
ground of suspicion againgt somé of the workers atl)s
alleged acts of sabotage and the poisoning of the Xlen
taken by some of the workers in the factory. ﬁ (gi
with the letters of termination the Compgny also, far
forwarded cheques amounting to a month’s salar‘-iyt oo
March, 1967, a month’s salary in lieu of notice ant v%o
weeks’ salary for each completed year of servuj:sethe
each worker, All workers named in group (1) of il e
reference with the exception of T. D. M. Perera anD

fiss Padma Weerakkody, all workers named in .grou_f
(3) and in group (6) received the above notice, of
termination. The present r%fetl":ncg acco;'génﬁy acci)dniiliso s

. of all the workers referre zbove adaitiod
] nber of olhers the subject matter o
g}:gu%e;l u;;le referred to under each group. 'Thteim tota}l
number of the work:zrg unlgerfﬁ;gh%ﬁer:rn:es{anid 1:t:,)sebe
TOU t to , all of wi Te S$a
ﬁxrgr‘rln%ir:l%ofmtlhe Ceylon Mercantile Union branch of

the Company.

\ ces t Company certain
[n the statement of the resg:lr(!éi:nup' Sugmiﬁsioras ];n
:  these preliminary objections were heard by
gﬁgaﬁﬁ'}fﬁrator a,x?d ordﬁfni\gas mabdjic%_r; r}ft}ﬁegz;r;%f_,
1067, rejecting the preliminary oD] S B 7.
" dent thereafter by petition dated 19t ember, 1967,
applied he Supreme Court for mandate in.
ggg}llrid o%ovat writ ogf Certiorari _and/or Prohibition to
quash the said order of the Arbitrator.

In.

i ication was heard by the Supreme Court
.onTglﬁihagxﬁlil c2é7éthanuai~y, 1968, and was dismissed on
9th April, 1968.

respondent thereupon on 30th April, 1968,
ap'glizd tgsgﬁe Supreme Court for conditional leave to
appeal to the Privy-Council, but the Sgprgme Cour:’
refused the application on the ground that it was no
an order made in a civil suit or action. An appeal was
taken direct to the Privy Council and on 25th February,
1970, the Privy Council made order granting the rfﬁ-

pondent special leave to appeal from the order off the
- Supreme Court. But as a result of the abolition o %
jurisdiction of the Privy Council the matter could no
be pursued before that ferum. Thereafter the %ﬁﬁﬁeﬁ%

i the matters referred to this ]
t%%nsmecx)xnced on 31st May, 1973, before  the present
Arbitrator.

this matter was taken up for inguiry on this
da‘tzhel\%r hlK. Shanmugalingam instructed by Mr. S.
Saverimuttu appeared for the applicant'and Mr. S. J. C.
Kadirgamar, Q.C., with -Mr. S. C. Crossette Tha,mblgh
and Mr. H. A, Abeywardene instiucted by Mr. S. L.
Moonesinghe appeared for the respondent Company.

_At the commencement of these proceedings, in view
.ojAthe long period of time that had already elapsed
over the preliminary- issues, it was agreed between:
parties, in order:to expedite proceedings that thg

.factory at Ratmalana.

present inquiry be confined only to the issue of dis-
missals of the workers named -in the reference and to
leave out all the residual matters pertaining to their
terms and conditions of service as well as disputes
regarding transfers and demotions without prejudice
to the Union’s rights to pursue such matters if an when-
considered necessary and expedient to do so. It was
also. agreed that certain workers who had already
come before the Labourt Tribunal on the question of
termination be left out of the reference as they had
had final orders dismissing their applications. It was
also' pointed out that a large number of the workers
referred to in the reference having already settled their
disputes with the management. were, therefore, not
interested in this inquiry, and that such workers be
left out of the inquiry. It was also agreed, that a number
of workers who were cassual employees and whose
names did not appear on the permanent checkroll of
the Company need not be included in this inquiry. It
was agreed that the inquiry be limited to the single
issue of the question of termination of the workers as
a result of the food poisoning incident of 12.3.67 and
the incidents of alleged sabotage and damage to vehi-
cles referred to by the respondent. Accordingly the
parties agreed to file a joint statement giving the names
of all the workers whose names appeared -on the per-
manent checkroll of the Company and whose services
have been terminated on the above issue, This joint
statement is attached to this award as Schedule A.

At the inquiry the respondent led the evidence of
11 witnesses and the applicant Union called two
witnesses. The first witness led by the respondent was
Mr. K. G. N. Seneviratne, the Secretary of the respon-
dent Company. In his evidence he gave a resume of
the circumstances leading to the dispute between the
respondent Company and the Applicant Union. He
stated_that he was present at the conference held on
12th March, 1967, when the proceedings had been
adjourned to enable the lawyers of the respondent fto
consult the Directors in regard to the proposals mdde
by the applicant Union. He returned to the factory
about 4 p.m, and he noticed several workers coming
out of the factory, after ‘the .day’s work. He said that
they looked boisterous and'they were shouting and
jeering and talking about the following day’s strike.
It appeared to him that the ‘workers who were mem-
bers of the Union were contemplating strike action.
The management had already taken steps to counter
the strike by making arrangements for the non-strikers
to remain within the premises for the night. Accord-
ingly from 10th March, over 200 non-Union members
were given accomodation in the temporary dormitory
prepared for the purpose. On the night of 12th. March,
they were also given their night meal which was
prepared .in the kitchen of the factory. After the day’s
work was over he returned home, but somewhere
about 9.15 p.m. he was hastily summoned by telephone
as there had been some trouble at the factory, When
he went there he found the workers who had remained
in the factory for the night had taken ill and were
purging and vomiting. These workers were sent to the
Colomboe South Hospital for treatment. Some of them
Xfere hospitalised and the others were brought back

ter outdoor teratment. The Company Doctor, Dr. D. W.
Wijeratne also was summoned and he also attended to
some of them in the premises. .

He also had reports from various sections of\‘th'e
factory about.sabotage of machinery. He received a
report from the Transport Deuartment that vehicles
parked for the night on 12th March had been damaged.
There was a report from the Factory at Kotahena of
damage caused in the Cold Room. There was also an
attempt to cause damage to the machinery in the

The Company called sevéral
Engineers to report on these damages.

In view of the incident of 12th March, the Company
decided to_stop work at the Factory at Ratmalana on
the following day. Accordingly a notice was put up
stating that the factory was closed until further notice.
Similarly, the work at the Kotahena Factory alse was
closed ffom 19th March after the sabotage in the Cold
Room was detected. Thereafter, the Company issued
letters of termination to all the workers who were
members of the C. M. U. These letters were signed
by him as Secretary of the Company on the orders of
the Chairman and were despatched on the 20th, 21st
and 22nd of March, 1967. A specimen of this letter
of termination was marked R18.

The next witness to give evidence was M. Chandra-
sekera, Factory Assistant. This withess stated that he
received instrtuctions from the management to take.
necessary steps for the preparation of a meal for the’
night for about 200 workers who had: consented to'
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remain in the premises on 12th March, 1967. Accordingly
he made arrangements to prepare this meal in_the
permanent kitchen in the factory at Ratmalana where
he had a permanent staff of 5 persons. He was generally
in charge of the workers who were staying for the
night. Cooking started about 3.30 or 4 p.m. and the
meal consisted of rice, two vegetables, fish curry and
onion sambal. The workers commenced eating about
7.30 or 8 p.m. in batches of 20 to 30 and the meal was
served in the canteen attached to the factory. He too
had his meals with them. Soon after there were
complaints of acute abdominal pain, vomiting and
purging. He asked the lady supervisor to give a
carminative from the first aid box. He tried to get
in touch with Dr. Wijeratne but he was not available.
He left a message for him and as there was a large
number of workers complaining of the same ailments,
he despatched them in the Company vehicles to Kalu-
bowila Hospital. He himself was ill and was vomiting
and purging. Later in the night Dr. Wijeratne himself
came to the factory with medicines and attended on
the workers who were not so gravely ill. A complaint
also was made to the Police and the Pohce_v151ted the
scene round about 9.30 or 9.45 p.m. The patients whose
condition was serious were admitted to the hospital,
while the others were brought back to the factory aiter
outdoor treatment. These people were kept in the
premises and treated by the Company Doctor and sent
home after they were cured.

The next witness examined was Mr. M. K. Don
Ratnaweera, Factory Foreman. He stated that t}_xe
factory remained closed after the 12th of March till
" the 19th, during which period nobody was permitted
to enter the factory premises. On the 19th the machine

rooms of the factory were opened in the presence of

two Engineers from Walker Sons & Co., Ltd.,, and the
Head Baas who worked under him. When he turned
on the main switch there was an explosion and it was
found that this had been caused by someone bridging
the phase lines supplying power with a wire. This
had been deliberately done by someone. They also
found that some bolts had been inserted in the drive
chains of the laminator machine. If the machine had
been started without this examination the laminator
would have got considerably damaged.

Mr. C. R. Perera, Foreman in charge of the Transport
Department gave evidence in respect of the damage
caused to the vehicles that had been parked in the
Garage Section on the night of 12th March, 1967. He
said that in all about 30 vehicles were parked for the
night, most of them in the garage section and a few
of them that came late into the factory were in the car
park section. Of the drivers of these velricles about
12 who did not belong to the C. M. U. were among
those who remained in the premises for the night, and
all these drivers had taken ill after the night meal.
On the 13th he found that in some vehicles-the brake
hose connections had been cut and in some the wiring
harness had been cut. He brought these matters to
the notice of the management and some Engineers from
the Automobile Association of Ceylon were got down
to report on these vehicles. It was found that from
among 27 vehicles parked in the garage section, about
9 vehicles had been damaged.

Mr. D. W. Wijeratne, Factory .Manager, Kotahena,
gave evidence in regard to the damage caused in the
Cold Room of the Factory at Kotahena. On the 16th
of March, 1967 he found that the Cold Room was not
funectioning and when he examined the room he found
that one of the coils had been perforated by a sharp
instrument. As a result the gas in the coil had leaked
out. He got in touch with the Agents and also reported
the matter to the management and he received instuc-
tions to close the factory from 19th March.

The respondent also led the evidence of Messrs P. D.
A. N. Basnayake and L. Y. H. Pakstun of Messrs
Walker Sons & Co., Ltd,, in confirmation of the evidence
in regard to the alleged sabotage within the factory
premises at Ratmalana. Inthis connection the respon-
dent marked the report of Walker Sons & Co., Ltd.,
dated 23rd March, 1967 as R19 and R19A. In confirma-
tion of the evidence in regard to the damage caused to
the vehicles in the garage section, the evidence of Mr.
M. P. Abeyguneratne, Engineer, Automible Association
was led and his report dated 22nd March, 1967 was
marked R20. The evidence of Dr. N. A. C. Wijeratne,
Admitting Officer, Colombo South Hospital was led in
connection with the patients admitted to the hospital
and those who were given outdoor treatment. In his
evidence, this witness marked 77 Admission Sheets in
respect of these patients. It was his evidence that
these patients had shown symptoms iof diarrhoea,
vomiting and abdominal pains after a night meal taken

earlier. In his opinion these symptoms were sugges-
tive of food poisoning and he suspected that it was
caused by an irritant type of poison. According to the
information in the admission sheet, arsenic poisoning
had been suspected and B. A. L. had been administered
in certain cases.

The management also led the evidence of Dr. D.
Chanmugam, M.D. (Ceylon), M.R.C.P. (London)},
a Specialist attached to the Faculty of Medicine,
Colombo, who attested to the fact that the symptoms
complained of were suggestive of a non bacterial
poisoning and he ruled out the possibility of bacterial
poisoning from putrid food in view of the very short
duration of time for the manifestation of symptoms.
The respondent also led the evidence of Mr. P. E.
Mathew, Chartered Accountant and marked in evidence
several statements of Accounts and balance sheets to
indicate the present financial position of the Company.

The applicant Union led the evidence of Mr. S. J.
Doresamy, a retired Assistant Government Analyst,
who had tested these specimeans in regard to the type
of poisoning manifested by the symptoms referred to
in respect of these patients. It was his opinion that
bacterial poisoning could not be altogether exciuded as
such a situation could develop if the food consumed
had deteriorated considerably prior to consumption. He
also stated that the symptoms spoken of need not
necessarily have been caused by a metallic poisoning
like arsenic, but that it was also possible that croton
oil, which was often used in Ayurveda, could also cause
such symptoms. He also stated that there were no
reliable tests which could detect very small quantities
of croton oil which could cause considerable damage.

-He also stated that he made epecific tests for arsenic

in the samples but found none.

The Union also led the evidence of Mr. T. Kanda-
samy, Assistant Government Analyst, who produced
reports marked A3 to A7 on specimens of stomach
wash of several workers, cabbage, fish and potato
curries, bread, string-hoppers, rice, several varieties of
curry powder, water, as well as certain products of-
the Maliban Biscuit Co., at Ratmalana sent by the
H. Q. I, Mt. Lavinia Police on 13.3.67 and 16.3.67 in
sealed packets for examination in connection with the
complaint of food poisoning at the Maliban Factory
on the night of 123.67. These reports state that no
poison was identified in any of the specimens sent.

The reason given by the Company for the termina-
tion of the services of these workmen in R18 was on
the ground of “reasonable and justifiable suspicion”
against some of the workers of alleged actions of
sabotage and the poisoning of the meal taken by some
of the workers in the factory. In the answer of the
respondent dated 17th July, 1963, filed of record, the
Company has further elaborated on their position in
paras. 8, 9 and 10 as follows :—

8. “ The Company carries on business, inter alia, of
manufacturing biscuits for consumption by the
public and employs very expensive and valu-
able machinery for the purpose. The Companys’
products are distributed widely and consumed
by a large number of people. The Company
has suffered at the hands of a section of its
employees, sabotage and malicious action
directed by some of its employees against
other employees, as well as the Company.

This action was directed towards injuring
the Company, as well as its employees. There
was poisoning of the food of a considerable
section of the Company’s employees, which
from all circumstances, appears to be directed
to bring about the death of its employees.

The Company submits that it .was well
entitled in law to take protective action to
ensure the safety of the lives of its employees,
and in these circumstances the Company did
decide to terminate the services of a section
of its employees, which action it will justify
by evidence before this tribunal, if this tri-
bunal is empowered to have or maintain
proceedings. .
9. The Company submits it has a duty by the publi

to which it sells its biscuits. yTl};e Coglpanc};
submits that it cannot take any risks and that
in no event can-the Company, which is engaged
in the manufacture of food, ever reinstate
workers suspected of such malicious acts: of
sabotage calculated to endanger the lives' of
humans. . ‘
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10. The workforce of the Company is divided into two
rival camps and there is a great deal of hos-
tility between those working for the Company
now and those whose services were terminated
in consequence of sabotage and malicious action

which resulted in injury to those working for

the Company."” ' '

From the above statements it is evident that the
respondent was urging two reasons for the termination

of the services ot ine workers named in this reference;
viz.,

(a) These workérs as members of the C.M.U. Branch
4 'were responsible for the poisoning of food and
acts of sapbotage on 12.3.67 and thereafter which
actions were directed to cause damage to the
. Company and aeath to its loyal empioyees,

(b) That the workforce of the Company was divided
into two rival camps and that the dismissed
workers were responsible for certain malicious
actions-ealculated to cause injury to the work-

ers of the rival camp.

The respondent has led a vast' volume of evidence
in their attempt to support their .contention on these
two grounds, This evidence undoubtedly leads to the
conciusion that there has been poisoning of food on
@ very large scale on 12.3.67 and a large number of
workers wno had consumed this food had suffered
considerably as a consequence; that the Company’s
vehuicles had been damaged on the night of 12.3.67;
that there has similarly been an attempt at the sabotage
of machinery at the lactories of the respondent Com-
pany at Ratmalana and Kotahena. There is, however,
no evidence wnatsoever that any member or members
of the Ceylon Mercantile Union who were attached to
this Company either had been responsible for any of
these acts or suspected of having been so. On a very
careful examinauon of the evidence of the wvarious
"Witnesses who gave evidence before this Tribunal, not
one has been able to give any positive evidence of the
complicity of any of the members of .the C.M.U. in
these malicious acts. In fact the question was pointedly
put to some of the witnesses by the Counsel for the
Union and none of them were able to state explicitly
as to who had been responsible for these acts. To
quote one or two examples, the evidence of Mr. K. G,
N. Seneviratne is as follows : —

“Q. So that with regard to the food poisoning, you
"~ do not know who introduced the alleged poison
into the food ?

A. T do not know.

‘Q. You did not know when it was irntroduced
- * whether it was introduced before 4:45 or after
4.45 pm. ?

Cooking started at about 3.30 or 4 p.m.
Do you know when it was introduced ?
I do not know. N

- Q. It may have been after 4.45 p.m.?

>o»

A. I do not know.

Then a little later : —

Q. You do not know whether a single member of
the C.M.U. had anything to do with the alleged
poisoning 7

A. I do not know.

Q. You do not know whether a single member of
the CM.U: had anything to do with alleged
acts of sabotage which you have spoken to ?

A. T do not know.”

Similarly, Mr. M. Chandrasekera who supervised the
preparation of the night meal on 12th March, 1967 was
unable to throw any light as to how the alleged poison
had been introduced into the food or as to who could
have been responsible. He admitted that he had a
staff of five people working in the kitchen and obvi-
ously these five would have been workers who were
loyal to the Company. In regard to the sabotage of
factory machinery and the vehicles, the witnesses who
gave evidence were unable to state as to who was
responsible for those acts nor were they with any
degree of certainty able to say when these acts were
done. The evidence in this connection of Mr. M. K.
Don Rathaveera, the Foreman of the Factory is as
follows : — .

i .
“@Q. I am suggesting that this could have been done
, . after the 12th? ) o i
‘A. That 1 do not'kbw, -~ AR

30 el dian LTI )
. fou «do net know - who caused it# i

- the other Union were the loyalists. The

A. I do not know, .

Q. Even if it was done between 3.30 and 4.45 pm
on the 12th, you do not know whether it was
done by the C.M.U. members or anybody else ?

A, I do not know.”

In regard to the damage caused to the vehicles
parked in the garage on the 12th of March, once again
the witness Mr. C. R. Perera,. Transport Foreman, could
only speak to the'damage done but was unable to state
who was responsible for it.

In the course of the evidence it transpired that a
complaint was made to the Police on the 12th itself
and Police arrived on the scene round about 9 p.m.
After the investigations the Police had reported three
people in case No. 79276/A in the Magistrate’s Court .
of Colombo South as suspects, but on 9.5.67 these three

had been discharged as, apparently, there was no
evidence against them.

The respondent has led no evidence as to what steps
were taken by 'the management to investigate into
these malicious acts in order to ascertain as to who had
been responsible for them. Apparently there was no
such investigation. Nor have they placed any acceptable
evidence to justify this stand of * reasonable suspicion
referred to in Ri8. It appears to me from the evidence
of Mr. Seneviratne in particular, that the management
had come to the conclusion that the C. M. U. members
were responsible for these acts merely from their
conduct in pressing for their trade union demands and
their threat of trade union action. The Learned Counsel
for the respondent has pointed out that Mr. Seneviratne
overheard some C. M. U. workers as they were leaving
the premises after the day’s work, making the remark
“We will give.you to go from the mouth and back ”.
It would appear that the Company has interpreted this
remark to explain the subsequent incident of food
poisoning. It is apparent that the respondent had come
to the conclusion that the C. M. U. was responsible
basing their suspicions on such flimsy grounds as
desultory remarks made by a sectior of workers who
were agitating for certain demands through their trade -
union. It is a matter for regret that the management
did not pause to think over the result of the conference
which had taken place that same afternoon and that
the .Union had agreed to await the decision of the’
management for another two days before they resorted
to direct action. Instead they had come to a very hasty
conclusion and proceeded to terminate the services of
all the workers who belonged to the Union, without
any vestige of evidence against either the Union or any
of its members, and without a proper investigation,
merely because they happened to be actively pursuing
certain demands legitimately through their trade union.

The second ground ‘urged by the respondent against
the Union was that there were two rival camps at the
workplace and that the workers belonging to the
C.M. U were out tc harm the workers who were loyal
to the Company. The respondent in his statement to
the Tribunal has categorically stated so and also re-
iterated this positior In the letter of the Chairman
dated 13.3.67 marked R17. It would appear from R17
that the management was thinking in terms of two
rival parties among the workers in their establishment,
of whom those belonging to the C. M. U. were the
disloyal ones and the rest who apparently belonged to
Chairman
appears to have been apprehensive for the safety of
these loyal workers. Apart from this there is no other
evidence to show that there has been such a degree of

-inter-union rivalry to warrant such a conclusion. No

evidence whatscever was led before the Tribunal that
there was such acute rivalry between thése two parties
as to infer that the C. M. U. workers were out to
destroy the rest. - : '

Therefore on-a very careful consideration of - the
evidence placed before the Tribunal, it is difficult for
me to accept the position of the respondent that they
had adequate grounds for the termination of the
services of these workers. The respondent Company
itself has never urged before the Tribunmal that they
had positive proof of all the malidious acts that have
been done on 12th March and thereafter. In their letter
of termination itself they had stated that they were
terminating the services of these workers solely on
grounds of suspicion of alleged -acts of sabotage and food
poisoning by some of them.

The Learned Counsel for the respondent has urged
that there was sufficient ground: for the management
to suspect the workers of the C. M. U. of these actions,
and that that degree of suspicion would be adequate
ground for the termination of theirh services::as the
maragément was concerned ‘withuvthe safetyt of their
loyalrworkers, the pratection of their property and the
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common good of the public who were the consumers of
their produce. I am afraid I cannot agree with the
contention of the Learned Counsel for the management
in this regard. It would appear to me from the evidence
produced before the Tribunal that this suspicion has
been drawn from the flimsiest of grounds imaginable
by the chance remark of some workers and by the
general conduct of Union members who appear to have
displayed a certain degree of restlessness In their
anxiety for an early decision on their trade Union
action. I am, therefore, of the view that the termina-
tion of the services of these workers has been without
good cause. They would therefore be entitled to relief.

On the question of relief there are a large number
of matters that has to be taken into c_on51derat10n. The
applicant Union has urged for re1rrs_taten'_1ent with
backwages for all the workers involved in this arbitra-
tion. The respondent Company has also stated its case
against re-instatement. The _main _arguments put
forward by the Company against re-instatement are,

(1) The present unsatisfactory state of the industry
which, it is alleged, has been caused by the
lack of raw 'material for production.

(2) The Company's present financial position does
not warrant any further expansior of the
workforce of the Company. -

(3) The ill-feeling that exists between the present
workers and those whose services have been
terminated.

(4) The lack of confidence of the management in the
workers whose services have been terminated.

(5) The long period of time that has lapsed since
their termination,

In regard to the Ist and 2nd reasons urged by - the
Company a considerable amount of evidence has been
placed by ihe Company through their auditors Messrs.
P. E. Mathew & Co. They have also marked in evidence
the audited accounts of the Company from the years
1966 to 31st March, 1972, It was the evidence of Mr. P.
E. Mathew, Chartered Accountant, that this Company
had made considerable profits up to the year ending
31st March, 1971 but for the years 1972 and 1973 there
had been a loss of Rs. 89,775 and Rs. 888,676 respec-
tively. He narked in evidence documents R22 and R23
giving a summary of the Statements of Accounts from
1966 to 1973. He also marked the Balance Sheets as
R26 to R32 for the years 1966 to 1972. In cross-exami-
nation he admitted that the Department of Inland
Revenue has not accepted the Returns of the Company
from 1969 onwards. The Learned Counsel for the
applicant Union has strongly challenged the State-
ments of Accounts from the years 1969 onwards and has
stated that they are unreliable in coming to a conclu-
sion on the true financial position of the Company.
In fact in his submissions the Learned Counsel for the
Unionr has pointed out several matters where Mr.
Mathew was unable to give a satisfadtory explanation.
It was pointed out by him that the Company had spent
a sum of Rs. 910,098 in 1967 as wages for 623 workers
in the factory, while in 1970 for 230 workers the
Company had speni as wages Rs. 1,040,010, and in 1971
for 239 workers the wages bill was Rs. 1,107,441, Mr.
Mathew was unable to explain how with about 1/3rd
the number of workers in 1970 and 1971 the wage bill
was considzrably more than in 1967.

Another important point that transpired from the
evidence of Mr. Mathew is that two other subsidiary
companies had been formed by the very same Directors
of the respondent Company to take over two sections
of the business of the Company. Thus A. G. H. Organi-
zation Ltd. had taken over the retail distribution of
Maliban products while the-Liftle Lion Associates had
taken over the cake making business. It was admitted
in the evidence of Mr. Mathew that both these orgarmi-
zations were run with the very same staff, vehicles and
equipment of the criginal Company. From this evidence
it would appear that though the expenditure of this
Company had remained unchanged the_profits have
been siphoned off by these two new organizations.

In regard to the contention that the business was
seriously affected by the shortage of raw materials, it
is not possible to state that the Company has adduced
sufficient evidence to establish this position. It is true
that in 1972 there has.been a decrease of about 12 1/2
percent on the quantity of raw materials used in 1967.
However, in the intervening years there has been no
shortage but ‘a distinct: increase in the Taw materials
consumed by the industry. An explamationn for she
reduction in 1972 can be found in the summary of the

consumption of raw materials indicated in R32. In this
summary I find that the stock as at 31st March, 1972
was worth Rs, 1,654,153.79. This amount is 3 times the
amount of stock as at 1st April, 1971, It would therefore
appear to me that the Company for some reason or
other had reduced theirs production for the year 1972
and held back their stock of raw material perhaps for
future use. In these circumstances I have to agree with
the submission of the Learned Counsel for the Union
that the evidence in respect of the state of the industry
as stated by the respondent is not a true picture of
the actual state of affairs. On the other hand there does
not appear to be any doubts that this industry is still
in a viable state and I am inclined to think that the
Company could continue to function as a going concern
despite the stress placed upon it by this award.

In regard to the other two contentions of the respon-
dent against re-instatement of these workers, it is not
necessary for me to dwell at length on them in view
of the findings already stated earljer.

Finally it has also been urged by the respondent that
in view of the long period of time that has lapsed since
their termination and the final conclusion of the matter
it would not be just and equitable to order re-instate-
ment in respect of these workers. This position would
perhaps have been valid if others were recruited to
replace them. But I observe from the proceedings before
the Tribunal that the Company had not taken in any
workmen to fill the vacahcies created by these termina-
tions. The Company had somehow managed to carry on
with the 200 odd workers who survived the termina-
tions of March, 1967, It is, therefore, not understood why
the respondent should be unable to re-instate these
workers. :

It has also been urged by the Union that the main
reason for the delay of nearly 8 years between the
termination and the conclusion of these proceedings was
solely due to the action of the Company and, therefore,
the workers should not be made to suffer the conse-
quences. :

In outlining the history of this case at the commence-
ment of this award I have already referred to the course
of action taken by the respondent since this matter
came up for hearing before this Tribunal. It must-be
siressed that it was as a result of this course of action
that there has been such a long delay in the proceedings
of this case. I could do no better than to recall what
the then Lord Chief Justice had to state in this cannec-
tion in dismissing the original application for a writ of
Certiorari and/or Prohibition moved by the respondent
on the ruling on the preliminary issue of jurisdiction.

“It is regrettable that advantage is often taken
of the right of recourse to this Court without any
substantial expectation of success, and with the
consequences only that harassment is caused to
opposing parties in the form of delays, inconve-
nience and expense. *

I cannot leave this case without stressing the need
for employers and their legal advisers to become
reconciled to the existence of the Industrial Dispute
Act and for the machinery which Parliament has
therein provided in the public interest for the
settlement of industrial disputes and the preserva-
tion of industrial peace. Obstructive tactics by -an
employer involved in such a dispute serve only to
create the impression that the employer either has
no faith in the merits of his own case or else that
he is in rebellion against the law of the land.”
(71 N.LL.R, 6-7).

If the respondent did not resort to this course of
action this matter would have been concluded within a
very reasonable period of time. I have no doubt that
great hardship has been caused to a very large body
of workers as a result of this long 'delay and as the
Union has pointed out a considerable part of them had
bzen compelled by circumstances to settle their matters
with the Company outside this Tribunal.

On a consideration of all these matters I think it
would be just and equitable to order the respondent to
re-instate all these workers whose disputes are now
before the Tribunal within one month from the publi-
cation of this award and also pay each one of them as
backwages a sum of money amounting to 3 years’ salary
at the rate of the salary last drawn by them or in the
alternative in lieu- of re-instatement a sum of Rs. 3,000
each in addition to the above hackwages. I haye indi-
cated in the schedule attached to this award the ‘amount
to be paid as back wages in the last eolums. "
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This total sum of money should be depos1ted with
the Assistant Commmissioner of Labour, (Colombo
South), Labour Secretariat, Narahenpita, Colombo 5,

within 4 calendar months from the date of publication of
this award.

In regard to the workers whose names do not appear
in the attached Schedule A, I make no award for thé

. Scaepure A
Serial N . srial
W M pag S dmen sewd N puy suay
ment month  backwages %z - fne;wh
Rs. c. Rs. c. Rs. ¢
1 Mr. W.P.Am .. 5, 7
2 Mr M A Abopdessa | 3. 5.03..125 30.. 4430 0 10 \ueeWW.A.Jamonoma  ..01.03.68.. 60 0.
3 Mr. W. K. Ariyapala . 1- 0 60“135 0 4’860 0 iss W. A, RupaJayalath 01.03.66.. 60 0.,
} MWK Amgmx})m]a - 1. 9.60..7385 9.. 4080 0 78 Mr.K.D.FrancisJoseph ..05.09.57. 1150 0..
_ . I . o ’ 79 MlssSKKarunawathxe..Ol.Oz.Gs.. 90 O..
s ﬁBSPHAMMﬁ:J: -?-ig-gg lgg 8" g,ggg g 80 Mr.S.D.G.Karunaratne 31.01.61..230 0.,
7 Mise T. M, Ariyawathio 1, 4.66.. 60 0.. 2160 o . MissM.V.Karunagods ..01.04.64.. 80 0..
8 Miss N. B. A. Agienona ..21.11.58..112 50.. 4,060 o 33 %[’ssle\fKD Keerbhnwzlthxe 04.07.65.. 70 O..
: iss usumawathie ..01.04.65.. 70 0..
13 i‘ﬁ:%’vvg ﬁlm‘ﬁ:hw ' 1. ‘é:gg:: Zg_ g:: gsfligg 8 84 Miss R. D. Karunawathie 02.06.65.. 70 0. .
11 Miss A.P.Leela Abeysinghel8. 7.61..100 0.. 3,600 0 gg %’Il[{ssg-%a;{unawathl:m..g(l).tl)%ﬁg.. :io 0..
) 88 A. . Karungwathie .11.58,.112 50..
12 Miss L. Am: h 1. 4.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 " b .
13 MrmsP. ” D&:;:"%&:dam 111,63, 91.27.. 3285 72 87 MissA. Kalyanawathie ..02.02.65.. 70 0..
14 Mr. E. A. Bodipala 2. 2.61..230 0.. 8280 0 gg gﬁgfj%&lyanmine "2?'30"‘2"'95 0..
- 2590 0 ugampitiya ..31.08.61..120 0..
}8 MlssB ﬁor_glelsas:aasmya 1};: §fgi'.:138 8:: 32268 0 90 MissS. Kotalawala ..01.04.66.. 60 O0..
17 Mnssi Ranmuthu Chitra .. 1. 3.66.. 60 0.. 2160 © 3; }ﬁsﬁiuforumenﬂ(e ..(2)5-04.61..100 0..
o . r.M.A.Leelaratne  ..08.10.62..195 0..
}g %gss Ig. DA. Chaﬁmﬁth{ef?:lgigéﬂﬂg 9(2’: : ?_;gg‘l’ lg 93 MissW. P, Leelawathioc ..25.06.62..100 0.,
20 Mr. T,W.M.Chandratilleke 1. 6.63..148 92.. 5,361 12 8§ %lis;}‘.ll;il}ﬁ_-h ..(23.02.61..112 50. .
) 9 ] . D. Lalitha ..01.04.66.. 70 O..
‘;; ﬁrms%i%m%ﬁ)m 1(15152?}33 8 gzggg 8 96 Mr. S. A. Manoratne ..01.10.61..185 O..
23 Miss K. D. Caroline .. 1.10.62.. 90 0.. 3,240 0 g; %EBSII-I?W.%IunaWeem..81.05.64.. 80 0..
! r. 1. H.Mendis ..01.01.64..148 92
24 Miss R.A.Charlottenona .. 1. 4.64.. 80 0.. 2,880 r ~S ..
25 Mr. B.P.E. Dharmasiri ..14.10.59..335 0.. 12,060 J 99 Mr.8.K .Martinsingho ..23.04.57..162 50..
26 Mr. S. H. Dayaratne .. 1.10.62.. 95 0... 3,420 0 ig? %?A%P.Mgglthasmiy&..16.08.66.. 75 0..
” ] . .22, 3.63.. 90 0.. 3.240 1 MissP. Matilda -.07.05.62..100 0..
2% ﬁiig.ffﬁfﬁy“ 128, 5.62..100 0.. 3,600 g 102 MissA.P.Magilin ..04.07.65.. 70 0..
29 Mr. M. Davidsingho .. 1. 3.63..148 92.. 5,361 1o igi igs.BI.‘A.Mghindaﬂasa ..06.06.61..125 0.,
thie .. 1. 4.65.. 80 0 2,880 0 : "8 .:Ma.smghe ..09.05.62..100 0..
30 mm“sT g_D“ﬁ‘W“D:W__ 1 765070 0., 5520 o 105 MissU.Menagame  ..20.11.58..112 50.
y kaluarachehi 106 Miss W. A. Nandawathié. .0).11.55, 112 50..
32 Miss T. G. Dayawathie .. 1. 4.64.. 80 0O 2,880 o }37 Mlhss' W.H.Nandanie ..02.05.62..100 O..
. N - 8 Miss A. Nandawathie ..01.05.64.. 80 0
33 Miss K. P. Dayawathie .. 1.12.58..112 50 4,050 0 = : v .- 021.00 ..
34 Mr.K.L.E DoSilva ..5.1.65..90 0. 3240 o 99 Miss® P D Nandawathie0l.05.64.. 80 D..
35" Miss Anna De Silva - ..24. 8.57..112 50.. 4,050 0 s V. Nimalawathie  ..20.03.63.. 90 0..
38 Mr. W. Dayananda .. 6. 9.64..148 92.. 5361 12 111 m.gr.B.deadasa ..16.09.63.. 85 O0..
. ‘ 112 Mr. S. P. Nandasiri ..01.06.63.. 85 0..
3 ﬁggmi{hf oSiva - - 18010 0 538 0 13 Miss K.D.N. Nanayakkara 01.03.66.. 60 0..
39 Miss Seetha Edirisinghe ..22. 9.58..112 50:. 4,050 0 114 MissK Premalatha  ..01.04.65.. 70 0..
40 Miss K. D. E. Ekanayaka 2. 6.65..112 50.. 4,050 0 115 MissL.A.M.Perera  ..01.01.65.. 70 0.,
» 0 118 MissH, A.Premalatha ..01.04.65.. 70 O0..
4 M O N ke T aay O 1BA0 0 117 MissU.L. Premawathio ..24.08.57..112 50..
43 Mr. G. S. Fernando 15. 4.66 75 0.. 2,700 0 118 BﬁSSW.A..D.Pel'OI‘S ..01.06.65..100 0..
44 Miss W. W. Fernando .. 1. 4.66.. 60 0.. 2,160 Y 119 Miss R. A. handrawathie26.03.63.. 90 0..
45 Mz S. G. Fernando- .15. 4.66..-75 0.. 2,700 Y Perera
. ..112 50.. 4’050 0 120 MissS. Pathirana A ..02.09.63.. 80 0..
4 Mmgsgaggxg;;gf:‘i}%}g,gg._‘ed 0 %389 O 121 MissA.A. Podibamine ..01.04.63.. 80 0.
48 Mr. N. A. C. Godamanne 1. 9.62..215 0.. 7,740 0 122 Mr.G.A.Piyadasa ..01.04.62.. 95 0..
49 Mr. Harry Guilbert .. 1. 7.64..240 0.. 8,640 0 123 MissM. Da.yawat:hlePerera.Ol.07.58_,112 50..
Mi ..13. 9.54..100 0.. 3,600 0 124 MissH.D. Perera .10.05.62..100 O..
gg Mr. géﬁiﬁgjﬁ .. 1. 3.66..148 92.. 5,361 12 1256 MissI.C.C.Preera ..01.04.64.. 80 O..
52 Mr. R. D. Gunadasa .. 9.12.60..115 0.. 4,140 o0 126 MissO.V.C.Premalatha..01.04.64.. 80 O..
53 Mr. L. A. K. Gunatilleke 20. 9.62..280 0.. 10,080 0 127 Mi]gs R. J. M. Chandra23.06.63.. 90 0..
4 Mr. J. P. Gunendra .. 1. 8.63.. 96 27.. 3,465 72 Perera .
gg Miss E. S. G. Gunasekera 1. 4.59..107 50.. 3,870 ¢ 128 MissT. W, Premawathie ..01.07.65.. 70 0..
B = 129 MissK.S. Perera ° ..01.04.64,. 70 O..
56 Miss E. N. Hettiarachchi 1. 4.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 ' _
57 Miss B. Hettiarachchi .. 1. 4.65.. 70 0 2,620 0 130 Miss B.N. Perera ..01.,09.64.. 80 O..
58 Mr. H. D. Hemapala ..16.12.58..132 50 4,770 0 131 Mr.K.A.D.Perera ..01.06.65.. 80 g--
59 Miss S. Horadagods  ..19. 6.61..100 0.. 3,600 0 132 Mr.K. W, Piyasiri --01.12.62..149- 92
D.ViolotHemanthal6. 8.62.. 90 0 3.240 0 133 Mr.H.P.Piyasens ..10.11.58.. 85 O..
O s D e ot o) 465,070 0.. 2520 0 134 Mr.K.D.P.Piyasens ..01.09.60..145 O0..
é> Miss M. K. Harriet © 1. 2.65.. 170 0.. 2,520 0 135 MissA.V.Premawathie ..01.07.65.. 70 0..
63 Miss G. P. Indrani © 1. 7.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 136 MissW.M.P. Pieris ..02.07.65.. 70 O..
64 Miss K. D. Iranganie  ..19. 9.56..112 50.. 4,050 0 137 MissW.A. Punyalatha ..01.07,65.. 70 0..
Tndr ..27. 2.61..100 0.. 3,600 0 138 MissU.Piyawathio ..01.02.63.. 90 O..
gg ﬁmleﬁ ]11) mep’;me . 1. 6.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 139 MissK Premawathie ..01.04.65.. 70 0..
67 Miss J. L. Jayalath . 2.7.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 140 MissR A.NeelaniPerera 01.04.66.. 60 O0..
68 Mr. K. N. Jayananda . 8.11.57..305 0.. 10,980 0 141 MissP.R.Nimal Pathmini0l:03.66.. 60 0..
69 Niss Mary Joseph . 2. 5.62..100 0.. 3,600 0 142 Miss S. A. Agnes Perera,.01.04.66.. 60 0..
70 Mr. R. U. Jinadasa 1.12.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 343 My N.J.M. Podiappuhamy06.05.63.. 91 27, .
71 MmisgS.M. D. MaryJuhet 01.06.(55..‘ 70 0.. 2,520 0 344 M.r]? V. Premaratne __04_01;53__1‘558 8
K. T.Ji ..07.08.65,, 76 0.. 2,700 0 145 MsssMa.rgr;gtPg.hhena ..01.04.66. . .
74 MissS. M. E. Jayasinghe . .14.04.66.. 60 0... 2,160 0 147 ‘Mr S.K. Biyasena ..03.08.62.. 95 0:.
75 MissSunitha Jinadasa ..01.04.66.. 60 0.. 2,160 0 148 Mr.J. RubanPerera ..10.10.62.. 95 0..

T ————

reasons stated above at the very commencement of these
proceedings on 31.5.73.

I make award accordingly.
’ R. C. DE S. MANUKULASOORIYA,

President,

Labour Tribunal (8).
Dated at Colombo, this 19th day of March, 1975.
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Serial Name Date of Salary- Amount  Sertal Name Date of  Salary Amount
No. Appoint- per of No. Appoint- per 0]
mend month  backwages ment month  backwages
Rs. e Rs. c. Rs. c. Rs. c.
149 Miss E. R. Perera 14.12.56..112 50.. 4,060 0 199 Miss Wansawathie 15.07.66.. 70 0.. 2,620 0
150 Mr. K. Sivisena Perera ..26. 8.63.. 85 0.. 3,060 0 _Dharmasena
151 Mr. Palihakkara ) 5.6l..148 92.. 5361 12 200 Miss K. D, Florence  ..01.06.65.. 70 0.. 2,620 0
152 Miss W. H. Rupawathie 1. 6.65.. 70 ©0.. 2,620 0 201 Mr. G. L. Gunaratne  ..04.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,620 0
153 Miss D. P. Ratnayake 18. 7.61.. 70 0.. 2,520 ¢© 202 Miss S. A. Hemawathie ..03.08.685.. 70 0.. 2,520 0
154 Miss K. Ranawoeera S1.4.65.. 70 0.. 2520 2 382 %SSI}I.D H\eJt_biard:ehchi ..01.04.65.. 80 0.. 2,880 0
18 - P Band ..10. 4.66.. 76 0.. 2,700 o 2 r. H. D. Jinadasa ..01.12.68..195 0.. 7,020 0
122 iﬁmss%.g?g.ley&awmhie 3 6.65.70 0.. 2,620 o 205 Miss Kusuma Kariya-  22.08.57..105 0.. 3,780 0
157 Mr. P. Ramanayake 1. 9.64..166 42.. 5,991 12 206 msé‘mo Lalitha
168 Miss K.D.L. Ranjanie 1. 7.65.. 70 9.. 2,620 0 206 MissK.O. Laliths ..01.07.65., 70 0.. 2,520 0
150 Miss R. A. Rupawathie .. 1. 7.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 207 Miss M. H, Malanie ~ ..01.04.65.. 70 0.. 2,620 0
160 Miss W. Somawathie .. 1. 1.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 208 Mr. A H.Piyadasa ~ ..12.05.61..116 0.. 4,140 0
- . < ' 209 Miss K. G. Premawathie..01.04.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0
: s ..01.07.65.. 85 0.. 3,060 0 : € ) )
}g; I&L;;s%%bsfxgime ) 8%.‘31.22 0 o 2,520 o 210 Ml:;s H. A. Wimalawathie 01.04.66.. 80 0.. 2,880 0
iss H.W. 01.05.64. . .. 2/880 0 FPerera ,
163 ﬂli:g-‘gﬁf‘jﬁ{:‘“h“8}.8322; $0 0. 2850 o 21l Migs T. Wimslawathio  27.01.67..100 0.. 3,600 0
5 ' i ..01.03.66. . .. 2,700 0 Peiris
165 Mr. P.V.Seneviratne .01 0800, /148 99 2 o) 13 212 Miss R. Trono Povera  ..01.04.65.. 65 0.. 2,340 0
167 MI“-K-K- Siripala o7.07.61..115 0., 4:110 o 213 Miss W. D. Ratnawathie 01.04.64.. 80 0.. 2,880 0
168 Miss G. A. Sumanawathie 01.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 %ié %ss g-I*;K-SSorlnawaltnhie -.01-02-26.. 80 o0.. 2,880 0
e N . P. thie ..01.06.65.. .. 2
169 Miss W.P.G. Somawaithie 02.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 510 3py vy, Sandeman. ,.89.88.6?..11(8) 02, 2361 19
170 Miss H.D. Sumanawathie 01.97.65.. 70 0.. 2,620 0 417 35 W, A. Somapala 11.11.61..166 42.. 5091 12
171 Miss N.G.D. Somawathie 03.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 oyd pe b o ooPe e 01 07.65.. 70 0. 2520 ©
172 Miss R.L.G.Malinie Silva 01.03.66.. 60 0.. 2,160 0 iss K. G. Tilaka Ty Tao A 0%
173 Mr. W.D. Siriwardene 01.07.64..230 0 8280 0 219 Miss H. V. Vineetha ..01.04.57..112 50.. 4,050 O
174 M_r:M..Sir..non ©15.04.66.. 75 O.. 2:700 0 220 Miss M. H. Violet ..02.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0
175 Mr. W. Samson .01.09.65..148 92.. 5,361 12 221 Miss Muriel Williams ~ ..20.03.61..100 0.. 3,600 0
176 Miss K. Karunawathie 21.05.56..102 50.. 3,690 0 222 Miss Ramyalatha Vithans 05.07.65.. 70 ¢.. 2,520 0
Silve ggz ﬁr }:L['gi Abegv?ckrgmn. 01.08.63..255 0.. 9,180 0
X . iss Indrani Dalugoda ..07.01.57..112 50.. 4,050 O
177 Miss B. G. Somawathie ..08.07.65.- 100"  Toay o 2% Miss M. Iranganio 25.11.63.. 80 0.. 2,880 0
179 Miss S. M. Tilakawathie ..01.04.64.. 80 0.. 2,880 0 Dharmawathi L 3 ,
180 Miss I. M. Tennekoon ..04.06.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 226 Mr.K.G.Davidappuhamy 13.03.63.. 95 0.. 3,430
181 Mr. M. H. A. Tissera  ..08.09.64..148 92.. 5,361 12 227 Mr. 8. Cecil Fernando ..09.03.64..145 0.. 5,220
182 WMr S. P. Tillekaratne ..01.07.64..130 oO.. 4,680 0 228 WMiss L. N. Janenona ..24.09.56..112 50.. .4,050
183 Miss C. J. Mary Theresa 16.11.58..112 50.. 4,050 0 229 Mr.L.D.Jeevananda ..01.04.63.. 95 0.. 3,420
184 Miss J. A. Udulawathie ..15.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 230 Miss M. Mayawathie ..29.05.58..112 50.. 4,050
185 Miss V. G. Violet ..02.07.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 33; ﬁ;ﬁ:&mmmlqmmakkm’gh" g;'gi'gg“lég'm“ ?gio
186 Miss K. G. Wimalawathio 01.08.58..112 50.. 4,050 0 233 Miss P. M. A. Srivalatha  07.08.62. 100 0.. 3, 0
187 Miss S. Wimalawathie ..05.01.59..112 50.. 4,050 0 s e e S SEYR A -08.62..100 0. 3,600
188 Mr. W.M.N. Weerasinghe 12.01.59..325 0.. 11,700 ¢ 234 MissH.D. Sriyawathi ..06.06.62..100 0.. 3,600
189 Mr. D.C. Wickremasinghe 01.04.63..170 0.. 6,120 0 235 M'SS,(iA- L. Samara-  30.04.62..100 0.. 3,600
- W1 ema.
190 Miss B. Weerasinghe  ..05.05.61..100 0.. 3,600 0 Aralandi
191 Miss G.D. Wimalawathie 02.06.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 323 ﬁ: ]g,'f ‘Benedic? "gi'gg'gg”lgg gg" (2;’;22 1
192 Miss P. Wickrematilleke 06.06.65.. 70 0.. 2,520 0 938 r. P. Nanayakkara “10.08.61“115 0” 4’140
103 s . A et e e 1o o L4000 539 MissD.AM. Weerasinghe 01.08.62.. 90 0.. 3,240
. Withanac ..20.09.61.. .. s
195 Miss D. Prema Wijeratne 24.06.58..112 50.. 4,050 0
196 Mr. S.A. Francis Wilson 01.06.64.. 85 0.. 3,060 0 Total .. 882,195 36
197 Miss T. W. Yasawathie ..30.05.62..100 0.. 3,600 0
198 Miss D. D. Aslin ..06.04.68.. 60 0.. 2,160 0 4-202—Gazette No. 159 of 75.04.11
Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
S
THE ANIMALS ACT, No. 29 OF 1958
Dates and Places sélectgd for Cattle Branding in Nintavur Pattu, Amparai District—1975
(From July 1st to July 31st)

G.5.s Dix. Nams of Grama Seval:a Division Date of Branding " Place of Branding
Number : .
37 Division 5, Nintavur .. .. .. .. 01.07.75—-03.07.75 . G.8.’s Office
38 Division 4, Nintavur .. .. .. .. 04.07.75—06.07.75 do.
39 Division 3, Nintavur .. .. .. ., 07.07.75—09.07.75 do.
40 Division 2, Nintavar .. : .. .. .. 10.07.75—12.07.75 do. -
41 Division 1, Nintavar .. .. .- .. - 13.07.75—15.07.75 do:
42 Division 3, Karativa .. .. .. .. 16.07.75—18.07.75 do.
43 Mavadipalli .. .. .. 19.07.75—21.07.75 do:
44 Division 1, Karativa .. R : .. 23.07.75--25.07.75 " do.
44A Malikaikadu .. .. ’ .. .. 26.07.75—28.07.75 do.
45 Division 2, Karativua .. . . .o 20.07.75—31.07.75 do.

PERCY ABEYSINGHE,
Fovernment Agent, Amparai Distriot,
The Kachoheri, , .
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THE ANIMAL ACT, No. 29 OF 1958
pabes and Places Selected for Cattle Branding in Akkaraipattu D.R.0.’s Division, Amparai Distriet
@.S.’s No. Q.8.s Division Branding Dates . Branding Places
10 .. Thirukkovil . .. 16.05.75—23.05.75 .. Thirukkovil R.D. '
30.05.76—06.08.75 .: 8’Kanchirankuda
13.06.76—20.06.75 .. R.D.S.lands, Koraigroup Estate
11 Division No. 2, Thambiluvil 13.05.76—27.05.75
24.06.75—27.08.75 Pallaveli Div. 2, Thambiluvil
. . 05.07.76—17.07.75 \
12 e e o
Division No. 1, Thambiluvil 20.05.76—28.08.75 G.8.’s Office
20.09.76
13 . Panankadu .. 09.05.75—30.05.75 Near Panankadu School Ground, Puddam-
05.08.756—27.06.75 | bai, Kannakipuram
15 . Divisionr No. 1, Akkaraipattu " 15.05.756—29.05.75
05.08.75—12.06.75 ] G.8.’s Offlce
16/17 23 Division Akkaraipattu . 18.05.75—20.06.75 O
I [3 Division IR ae20.08.78 0. Y. L. Athamlebbe land, Msin Street,
19.09.76—17.09.75 J -Akkaraipattu
18/18 4/8 Division Akkarsipattn . 05.06.75—12.06.75 . .
10.06.75—26.06.75 ) Near Puthupalli, Akkaraipatiu
20 Division No. 8 Akkaraipattu 05.08.75—13.06.75 o ae aaa .
20.08.75—27.06.75 ] Paddiyadipiddi, Akkaraipattu
21 Division No. 7, Akkaraipattu g’ilgg;g:;ggg;g ] Alsyadivempu Division 7, Akl ipattn
22 Division No. 89, Akkaraipattu 09.05.75—30.05.75 ,
‘ 05.06.75—27.06.75 ) G.5.'s Offioe
23 Kolavil .. . .. 12. 3.75—27.05.75 . . ,
28.05.75—10.08.75 ] Near Vinayaga Vidiyalaya, Kolavil
o W. K. A. P. P. ABEYSINGHE,
vernment Agent, Amparai Distriot.
The Kachcheri .
Amparai. -
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THE ANIMALS ACT, No. 20 of 1988 :
Dates and Places for Cattle Branding in Karavaku Pattu in Amparai Distriet 1975
@. 8 Name of Grama Sevakas Branding Ddtes Branding
No. \ Division Place
47 Sainthamaruthu Division 6 . st Wednes'dny of every month except the month of December .. G. 8.’s Office
47A Sainthamaruthu Division 4/5 2nd Thurseday of every month except the month of December .. do.
50 Sainthamaruthu Div. 2/3 . do. .. .. do.
652 Sainthamaruthu Division 1 " do. .. . _— .. do.
53 Sainthamaruthu Tamil Division 1st Wednesday of every month except the month of Decomber .. do.
54 Kalmunaikudy Division § 1st Thursday of every month except the month of December do.
55 Kalmunaikudy Division 4 do. .. . .. .. do.
56 Kalmunaikudy Division 2/3 do. .. - .. .. .. do.
58 Kalmunaikudy Division 1 1st Wednesday of every month except the month of December . . do.
59 .. Kalmunai Division 3 2nd Thursday of every month except the month of December do.
61 Kalmunai Division 1/2 1st Tuerday of every month except the month of December do.
62 Naipaddimunai T. D. 4th Tuesday of every month except the month of December do.
64 Naipaddimunai M. D. © do. .. .. ’ .. do.
66 Pandiruppu 1st Tuesday of every month except the month of December do.
67 .. Maruthamunai Division 2 3rd Tuesday of every month exeept the month of December do.
68 ... Maruthamunai Division 1 | 2nd Thursday of every month except the month of December .. do.
69 Chenaikudiyiruppu : 1st Wednesday of every month except the month of December do.
71 .. Periyaneelavanai Division 2 2nd Tuesday of every month excopt the month of December .. do.
72 .. Periyaneelavanai Division 1 18t Wednesday of every month exeept the month of December .. do.
) . PERCY -ABEVEINGHE, '
‘ . Government Agent, Amparai District.
The Kachcheri, .
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NOTIFICATION

IT is hereby notified that under regulation 8 of thé regulations

made under Section 9 of the I
(Chapter 187) as amended by regulation
No. 9859 of April 30, 1948, the Colombo,

National

National Museums Ordinance
ublished in Gazetts
sndy and Ratnapiirs

Museums and the Folk Musetm at Anuradhapura
will be closed to the public on 14th April snd 25th May, 1975

on .account of the Sinhaslese and Hinda New Year and the
Wesak Full Moon day respectively.

P. H. D. H. pE Smva,
2nd April, 1975. . Director of National Museums.
Department of National Museums,

Colombo, 7. .
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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING PUBLICATION OF GAZETTE

THE Weekly issue of the Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon) is normally published on
Fridays. Ifa Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazetle is published on the working day
immediately preceding the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for
publication in the Gazeite also varies depending on the incidence of public holidays in the week

oconcerned.

The Schedule below shows the dates of publication and the latest time by which notices
ghould be received for publication in the respective weekly Gazeftes. All notices received out of
times spesified below will not be published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post
for necessary amendment and return if publication is desired in a subssquent issue of the Gazette.
It will be in the interest of all concerned if those desirous of ensuring the timely publication of
notices in the Gazette make ita point to see that sufficient time is allowed for postal transmission
of notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer does not accept payments or subscriptions for the Government
Gazette. Payments should be made direct to the Superintendent, Government Publications

Bureau, P. O. Box 500, Seoretariat, Colombo 1.

Note.—Payments for inserting Notioes inthe Gazette of the Republic of 8ri Lanka (Oeylon)
will be received by the Government Printer and not by. the Superintendent, Government
Publications Bureau. :

Schedule

1975

Month Date of Publication Last Date and Tsme of Acceptance
of Notices for Publication in the Gazelte

APRIL .. Friday 04.04.75 .. 12Noon . Thursday 27.03.75
Friday 11.04.75 . 12Noon  Friday 04.04.76
Friday 18.04.75 .. 12 Noon Friday 11.04.76
Thureday 24.04.76 12 Noon  Friday 18.04.76
MAY .. Friday 02.05.76 .. 12Noon  Thursday 24.04.75
Friday 09.05.76 «« 12Noon  Friday 02.05.76
Friday 16.05.75 .. 12Noon - Friday 09.05.75
Friday 23.05.76 12 Noon Friday 18.05.75
Friday 80.05.75 12 Noon Friday 23.05.756
JUNE Friday 08.06.75 .. 12Noon  Friday 30.05.76
Friday 13.06.76 <~ 12 Noon Friday 08.08.75
Friday 20.06.75 12 Noon Friday 13.06.75
Friday 27.08.75 12 Noon  Friday 20.06.75

’ L. W. P. Pemi1s,
Department of Government Printing, Government  Printer.
- Colambo, January 01, 1975.
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